Board Packet, 11/7/2024 Board Meeting

Live Oak Charter Board Norms

e Be brief and respect others.

e Be prepared for board meetings by asking questions ahead of time and follow the "No
Surprise Rule.”

e Avoid hidden agendas and springing any surprises on other members.

e focus on an agenda item until it is resolved or until a specified time has been reached to
resume the resolution process.

e Give your full listening attention.

e Be open to challenge your own beliefs and ideas; Stay open to new ways of doing
things.

Success depends on participation — share ideas, ask questions, draw others out.
Refrain from deriding other individuals’ ideas. Strive to value all opinions.

Work in the interest of all students.

Own your mistakes.

Celebrate success — take time to recognize small steps or progress toward goals.
Don'’t interrupt.

Express gratitude and appreciation.

Board Verse
The healthy social life is found when,

in the mirror of each human soul,
the whole community finds its reflection, and when, in the community,

the virtue of each one is living.

Contents of this Packet

E. Reports
3. Foundation Report p 2-4
4. Director’s Update p 5-17
F. Consent agenda
1. Board minutes for October 08, 2024 p 18-24
2. Financials for October 2024 p 25-42

H. The board will consider the following for review and approval
1. Media & Technology Guidelines Resolution p 43-49



LIVE OAK

CHARTER SCHOOL
FOUNDATION

Fundraising Report Through August 2024
Total 2023-24 Fundraising Goal: $181,110.00
2024-2025 projected grant to the school: $124,960.00
2024-2025 YTD actual grant to the school: $10,680.25

The grant amount is equal to 80% of our Net Income for each year, as set in the MOU between
the Foundation and the School.

Donations Received by Month [Source: Foundation Accounting]

Month 2020-2021 Year 2021-2022 Year [2022-2023 Year|2023-2024 Year| 2024-25 Year
July $4,233.67 $4,561.51 $4,176.53 $2,838.23 $5,790.03
August $12,566.54 $7,658.32 $6,997.66 $7,347.72 $7,560.33
September $13,829.33 $3,933.77 $4,746.60 $6,916.95
October $7,199.23 $7,962.98 $4,212.55 $12,235.87
November $ 8,827.93 $23,746.23 $8,131.14 $6,002.94
December $17,168.88 $19,597.50 $12,411.66 $8,857.33
January $13,955.94 $56,795.13 $11,525.19 $10,705.85
February $13,240.35 $8,327.05 $17,086.49 $11,040.79
March $11,267.57 $8,878.44 $92,132.20 $9,801.35
April $12,928.62 $14,611.86 $10,882.78 $108,254.38
May $54,223.26 $99,587.56 $10,070.25 $10,759.46
June $12,880.61 $4,624.86 $4,818.54 $10,017.12
Total $182,321.93 $260,295.21 $187,191.59 $204,742.99 $13,350.36

Variance From Last Year YTD: +$3164.41
Long-Term Capital Fund Ending Balance: $ 423, 365.22



LIVE OAK

CHARTER SCHOOL
FOUNDATION

Annual Fund Donations Year over Year Graph

Annual Fund Donations Year over Year

30000

20000

10000

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Current Year (2024-2025) Total mm=  Prior Year (2023-2024)Total

[Source: Foundation Neon Fundraising Platform]
Note: The discrepancy between the table from the Foundation accounting system and the graph
from the Neon fund-raising report is due to end-of-the-month donations which are recorded in
Neon by the check date or initiation of a credit card transaction, but recorded in the accounting
system when funds are received in the Foundation bank accounts, which can be several days
later.



LIVE OAK

CHARTER SCHOOL
FOUNDATION

Annual Fund Participation 2024-25 Year by Grade

Grade Donors | Class Current Donors Donors
Size Participation |[needed Donors needed
percentage toget neededto toget
to50% getto75% to100%
Rosemary K (TK) 4 21 19% 7 12 17
Redwood K 5 23 22% 7 12 18
First 10 26 38% 3 10 16
Second 12 30 40% 3 11 18
Third 12 30 40% 3 11 18
Fourth 15 25 60% 0 4 10
Fifth 11 31 35% 5 12 20
Sixth 13 29 45% 2 9 16
Seventh 15 27 56% 0 5 12
Eighth 15 28 54% -1 6 13
TOTAL 112 270 41% 23 91 158
Gifts Received from July 1,
2024 - OCT 5, 2024

Class participation = number of class families donating/divided by total students in the class
School Participation = total number of families donating per grade/divided by total students in the school

Annual Fund Participation by Grade End of Year Totals - Historical

Grade 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2023-24 Sept 2024
K-Rosemary 95% 77% 53% 52% 19%
K-Redwood 73% 45% 53% 61% 22%
1% 69% 53% 74% 77% 38%
2 88% 91% 60% 70% 40%
3 75% 75% 74% 77% 40%
4t 63% 66% 72% 63% 60%
5t 70% 57% 78% 71% 35%
6" 81% 72% 56% 76% 45%
7 77% 61% 69% 78% 56%
8t 66% 52% 58% 45% 54%

Totals 75% 65% 65% 68% 41%




Director’s Report

November 7,2024



Agenda

e Datareview
VV Collaborative Meeting
Enrollment
o Tours for VV
e General Updates
o Alliance Update
o TIDE meetings




Collaborative Meetings With Valley Vista

Multiple meetings have taken place; including

planning meetings with site leaders, and

others with District leadership.

e Awesome Collaborative evening with Valley
Vista and Live Oak communities.

e Valley Vista’s Dia De Los Muertos celebration.

" COMMUNITY

COLLABORATION
REVIEW OF NEW _
CHARTER

10/28/2024
6PM-7:45PM







CAASPP 2023-24

Blue: California
Red: PCE

Yellow: Live Oak
Green Valley Vista

ELA

60.00%

40.00%

20.00%

0.00%

B CA B PCE 0O mWwW

47.04%

60.00%

All Students




CAASPP 2023-24

Blue: California
Red: PCE

Yellow: Live Oak
Green Valley Vista

Math

50.00%

40.00%

30.00%

20.00%

10.00%

0.00%

B CA B PCE T B

35.54%

All Students

10



CAASPP 2023-24

Blue: California
Red: PCE

Yellow: Live Oak
Green Valley Vista

Science

80.00%

60.00%

40.00%

20.00%

B CA B PCE IO B W

61.36%

33.90%

0.00%

All Students

11



English Language Arts

3rd: 2021-22  |4th: 2022-23 |5th 2023-24
2453.3 2490.1 2527.2
30.77 33.33 22.73
34.62 25 36.36
65.39 58.33 59.09

Reporting Categories craces crades crae®
P By (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)
Mean Scale Score 2453.3 2490.1 2527.2
(]
[ standard Exceeded (Level 4) 3077 % 3333 % 20739
Percentage of students by grade for level
I Stancrd et (Level 3) © 3462% 25.00% 36.36%
Percentage of students by grade for level
(]
[T standard Nearly Met (Level 2) 23.08 % 20.83 % 36.36 %
Percentage of students by grade for level
[ standard Not Met (Level 1) °
11.54 % 20.83 % 4.55%
Percentage of students by grade for level
Ronoring Calocoris Grade 4 Grade 5 Grade 6
bR (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)
Mean Scale Score 2484.1 2524.4 2560.5
[l Standard Exceeded (Level 4) o
24.00 % 22.73% 10.71 %
Percentage of students by grade for level
(]
[l Standard Met (Level 3) 28.00% 31.82% 46.43%
Percentage of students by grade for level
Standard Nearly Met (L« \20
[[] Standard Nearly Met (Level 2) 36.00 % 31.82% 39.29%
Percentage of students by grade for level
[}
[ Standard Not Met (Level 1) 12.00% 1364% 357 %

Percentage of students by grade for level

4th: 2021-22  [5th: 2022-23  |6th: 2023-24
2484.1 2524.4 2560.5
24 22.73 10.71
28 31.82 46.43
52 54.55 57.14

1%



English Language Arts

Ronoring Catonorios Grade 5 Grade 6 Grade 7
RIS (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)
Mean Scale Score 2554.6 2563.6 2625.2
[}
[l Standard Exceeded (Level 4) 39.29 % 26.67 % 3913 %
Percentage of students by grade for level
Stand o

[ Standard Met (Level 3) 25.00 % 36.67 % 4348%
Percentage of students by grade for level
st o

tandard Nearly Met (Level 2) 2143% 23.33% 17.39 %
Percentage of students by grade for level

(]
[ standard Not Met (Level 1) 14.29% 13.33% 0.00 %
Percentage of students by grade for level
Reporting Categories Grade 6 Grade 7 Grade 8
i b (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

Mean Scale Score 2535.9 2606.0 2614.0
W st o

tandard Exceeded (Level 4) 12.00 % 2174 % 27.27%
Percentage of students by grade for level
[ Standard Met (Level 3) o 44.00 % 65.22 % 40.91%
Percentage of students by grade for level

[ ]
[ standard Nearly Met (Level 2) 30,00 % 13.04 % 27.07%
Percentage of students by grade for level
[ ]

D Standard Not Met (Level 1) 12.00 % 0.00 % 455 %

Percentage of students by grade for level

5th: 2021-22 6th: 2022-23 7th: 2023-24
2554.6 2563.6 2625.2
39.29 26.67 39.13
25 36.67 43.48
64.29 63.34 82.61
6th: 2021-22 7th: 2022-23 8th: 2023-24
2535.9 2606 2614
12 21.74 27.27
44 65.22 40.91
56 86.96 68.18

13



Alliance Update

Application has been submitted and accepted with positive feedback.
Due to packed schedules and the holidays, the new target for the visit is early December.
The process involves classroom observations, document reviews, and interviews with a host of folks such as:
o  Admin Team
o  Teachers
o  Families
o  Board Leadership
We are working on securing a date, and I'll move quickly once | have this.
Two full days will be required, and arranging for meals is necessary.

14



TIDE Meetings

e Three meetings have taken place, and regular check-ins scheduled every month.
e Three of the TIDE team spent an hour with the faculty, and bridges were built.

19,



Enrollment & Attendance

Enrollment

e Oneopeningin Kindergarten. We are moving down the wait list, and have four possible candidates.
e Fortunate traction with VV tours.

Attendance

e [nmonth 3with 1 more week in the 4 week cycle.
e Attendance rate year to date is 95.87%.
e There are 30 Independent Study packets out, and once they are returned they send attendance up.

15,



Questions?

RE



LIVE OAK CHARTER SCHOOL
100 Gnoss Concourse Petaluma, CA 94952 « (707) 762-9020

Minutes for the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors Live Oak Charter School
October 08, 2024
Live Oak Handwork Room and Zoom
6:00pm

School board meetings are being conducted in hybrid format, by virtual teleconference and in
person. Members of the public who wish to access the Board meeting via virtual teleconference
may do so at:

Join Zoom Meeting
https://liveoakcharter-org.zoom.us/j/99781015045?pwd=SzI3SnBZdDR3bWFZdnV1eVZ3c2krQ
TO09

Meeting ID: 997 8101 5045
Passcode: 339601

One tap mobile
+16699009128,,99781015045%#,,,,*339601# US (San Jose)
+16694449171,,99781015045#,,,,*339601# US

Members of the public calling in will be given the opportunity to address the Board during the
meeting. They should use the “raise hand” tool on the Zoom platform. Individual comments will
be limited to three (3) minutes. If an interpreter is needed for comments, they will be translated
to English and the time limit shall be six (6) minutes. The Board may limit the total time for
public comment to a reasonable time. The Board reserves the right to mute or remove a
participant from the meeting if the participant unreasonably disrupts the meeting.

Access to Board Materials: A copy of the written materials which will be submitted to the
Board may be reviewed by any interested persons on the Live Oak Charter School’s website
along with the agenda following the posting of the agenda at least 72 hours in advance of this
meeting.

Disability Access: Requests for disability-related modifications or accommodations to
participate in this public meeting should be made 72 hours prior to the meeting by emailing
kim.anderson@liveoakcharter.org. All efforts will be made for reasonable accommodations.
The agenda and public documents can be modified upon request as required by Section 202 of
the ADA

Mission & Program

To ensure the humanity and potential of its students through an education resonant with their unfolding awareness
and capacities, and supportive of the full and integrated development of body, heart, and mind. LOCS provides a K-8
program inspired by Waldorf education to children and families of Petaluma and surrounding communities. Waldorf
inspired education is a developmental approach to learning that cultivates the innate capacities of each child through

Regular Meeting Minutes of Live Oak Charter School Board, October 08, 2024 page 1of 6

18



age appropriate curriculum. Live Oak educates the whole child — head, heart, and hands, through an education that
integrates each child’s creative, intellectual, emotional, physical and social domains. Live Oak offers an
interdisciplinary liberal arts program where art, music, and movement are integrated with core academic instruction.
Exploration of the natural world, human culture, language and mathematics enlivens curiosity which is the foundation
of intellectual growth, conceptual flexibility, empathy and sense of connectedness.

Live Oak Charter Board Norms

e Be brief and respect others.

e Be prepared for board meetings by asking questions ahead of time and follow the "No
Surprise Rule.”

e Avoid hidden agendas and springing any surprises on other members.

e focus on an agenda item until it is resolved or until a specified time has been reached to
resume the resolution process.

e Give your full listening attention.

e Be open to challenge your own beliefs and ideas; Stay open to new ways of doing
things.

e Success depends on participation — share ideas, ask questions, draw others out.

e Refrain from deriding other individuals’ ideas. Strive to value all opinions.

e Work in the interest of all students.

e Own your mistakes.

e Celebrate success — take time to recognize small steps or progress toward goals.

e Don't interrupt.

e Express gratitude and appreciation.
CALL TO ORDER 6:06 pm
PRESENT

Kristin Walter, Board Chair

Robert Bunce, Board Treasurer
Samantha Sheppard, Secretary

Justin Lipp, Board Clerk

Kristina Tank-Crestetto, Board Director
Nick Russinko, Board Director

Valerie Miller, Board Director

Steve Bleasdell, Board Director

PRESENT, NOT VOTING
Byron Palmer, Board Director
Linda Delgado, Director

Land Acknowledgement Read, Verse read together, NR identified as timekeeper
Byron joined 6:08 pm

APPROVE THE AGENDA
JL moved to approve, KTC seconded; all in favor KW, RB, SS, KTC, NR, VM, JL, and SB

A. Public Comment on non-agenda items (15 min)
This portion of the meeting is set aside for members of the public to make comments or raise issues that are not

Regular Meeting of Live Oak Charter School Board October 08, 2024 page 2 of 7

19



specifically on the agenda. The board cannot, by law, respond or take action on any issue not specifically on the
agenda. Public Comment presentations are limited to three minutes per presentation and the total time allotted to
non-agenda items will not exceed fifteen minutes. While government code allows speakers to criticize the district's
policies, procedures, programs, services, and/or employees, the school does have a policy specific to complaints
against employees. Should comments from the public pertain to a specific school employee, the Board requests that
the complaint first be submitted, in writing, following the General Complaint Policy for investigation.

Eleven members of the public are here (6 in person, 5 on Zoom).

PC 1-Chris Daisy Pratt: like the new traffic pattern and flow; non-school community members
tend to roll through the stop sign - can we reach out to the city? Also, there is trash on the
ground sometimes, and he’d like to see a couple of trash receptacles available.

B. Reports

No public comment.
This portion of the meeting is set aside for delivery of information to the board/public. Board members may ask
clarifying questions, but items are intended to be primarily informational.

1. Treasurer Report (Robert Bunce)

a. 25% through the year; received 18% of revenues, spent about 20%, both lagging
a bit, always a lag in revenues - takes a bit to get money from the state. Talking
to foundation about move to Valley Vista

2. Foundation Report (Jennifer Oskonsky)

a. Our total participation rate is low, at 31%. Foundation has been working to get
more people . RB recommends repetitive asks; also highlighting programs at
every opportunity. VM recommends the repetitive ask is creative. KTC
recommends mechanisms of storytelling (pictures, stories from students).

b. Jog-a-thon has hit its original goal and has a new goal of $13K.

Winter Faire is the same day as end of year assembly - fundraiser.

d. BP suggests coffee mornings with stories & QR code to fundraising to help get
people set up online.

3. Director’s Update (Linda Delgado)

a. Enrollmentis at 271 students; the enrollment team has been creative around
revisiting with teachers - are they in the right class (TK/K) - conversations with
teachers, parents - lots of thought and care went into it.

b. Valley Vista - we had a tour for them, with 2 translators. Principle suggested we
spend only an hour, and folks stayed over that. Latinx families were excited; we will
do two more tours.

c. Scores - test kids take at the end of the year - gives educators opportunity to
review. Looking at the aggregate, we went up 2% to 60% were at or above grade
level; math scores rose 9% from 35 to 44.23%:; science went from 43.75% to 61.36
at or above, a 17.61% gain. Per BP, how do we compare? Linda doesn’t have that
info yet, but should have those numbers later this month. Per NR, what do you
attribute it to? LD says the math program, which has been pushed into lower
grades, is probably a reason. PCS elementary 48% ELA, 44% math; lower in MS.
Per KW, MS parents said their students in HS are overprepared (per recent parent
feedback received in the MS meeting).

d. Alliance for Public Waldorf Schools - History: we have been thinking about
reaching the official Public Waldorf level for many years; started the project of
really working toward the goal last year. We’ve joined their pilot project of joining as
full members doing a self study of 3 of the principals; last year, LD worked with

o

Regular Meeting of Live Oak Charter School Board October 08, 2024 page 3 of 7

20



faculty figuring out what we’re doing well and where we need to grow. LD will send
out on Friday & the alliance will come out to review, interview admin, students,
parents, board members. The Public Waldorf will follow us to the transition to the
new location/dependent status. Per BP, helpful to share with the community. Per
KW, especially with Middle School. KW thanks Linda, for the energy she is bringing
to the school and the willingness to go on field trips, and the focus on enroliment.

4. Communication Working Group Report (Valerie Miller)

a.

Q0T

f.

Intention is to continue communication with Parents via PS every two weeks;
sending information to parents; she has a running doc of communication, so
parents can get caught up quickly if they miss communications in PS;

Idea: hand select ambassadors for communication;

Idea: formal connection between board and foundation to facilitate communication.
Class Coordinator meeting met with in September to go over VV transition.

Idea: Per SS, if we have topics we want to bring from board, she can be the
conduit, as she attends it every other meeting.

17 parents showed up to the VV Q&A this morning, good discussion, and we're
drilling into the details with VV faculty and parents.

5. Strategic Planning Working Group Report (Nick Russinko)

a.

b.

Continuing to work on the 56 actions in the strategic plan; a lot have been
completed.

Will meet with TIDE group Updates to handbook wanted by TIDE; KW to work with
NR on handbook.

6. Policies Report (Samantha Sheppard & Justin Lipp)

a.
b.

C.

This has been a project long in the making, and we are reaching the end of it.
There are 3 policies we will review and hopefully approve tonight - needed for the
handbook. These policies are boilerplate.

There are additional policies that need to be updated. The team is working on them
and expects to have the bulk of them ready for review in November board meeting.

7. 6th Grade Field Trip

a.

Student feedback on the field trip (3 nights, as part of geology block, hiked Mt.
Lassen and Cinder Cone). Liked that you started out with an easy walk and ended
with Mt. Lassen; her group got to do extra - waterfalls and caves. Didn’t like that
the trail groups were set and she couldn’t be with friends - could mingle with
assigned tent group but if you had friends outside of that group, you didn’t get to
hang out with them. She did feel she got to know other people she didn’t know well
before. It also rained. Kids helped clean up, but didn’t have to cook (except lunch
prep). Cinder cone was good because you got to go inside of the volcano. Multiple
night field trip was good; this was her longest. Lassen hike was 4-5 hours.
Definitely found it to be educational and a good social experience as well.

8. TIDE Update

a.

VV has invited us to their Dia De Los Muertos event; we're all excited about it; we
have some teachers incorporating preparation for attending in their curriculum. It's
2:30-4; they would like our community to RSVP, as they need to make sure they
have enough hot chocolate, etc. for everyone.

C. Consent agenda

No public comment
All matters listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine, and all will be enacted by one motion and vote.

Regular Meeting of Live Oak Charter School Board October 08, 2024 page 4 of 7

21



There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Board member requests items to be removed from the
Consent Agenda for separate action.

1. Board minutes for September 10, 2024, Oct 03, 2024

2. Financials for September 2024

3. 2024/25 Live Oak Foundation MOU
RB move to approve, JL seconds; all in favor KW, RB, SS, KTC, NR, VM, JL, and SB

D. The board will consider the following for review and discussion
Public Comment: Listened to the VV Q&A meeting from this morning and was impressed.
1. Alliance Self Study Update (Linda Delgado)
a. Discussed in Director’s Update, Reports (Agenda Item B3)
2. Valley Vista Update (Kristin Walter)

a. Charter draft is looking good (submitting Nov 19). Submitting Draft
Implementation Plan October 25 to map the plan to the budget, and voting on in
December. Faculty is meeting Thursday to discuss how to make our program,
including handwork and movement, work for more classes, including additional
specialty classes. KTC - their board of trustees is concerned about engagement;
we should record all the ways we are engaging that community. Also, should
have a feedback loop to establish that engagement, seek out blind spots.

b. They love their name: Valley Vista; Valley Vista Waldorf is a suggestion; we
would need to get and keep our Waldorf alliance certification. We need to have a
new name within the next month; the name should pull our communities together.

3. Charter Update (Jessica Umphress)

a. Draftis 90% complete; decided to draft a new charter.

i.  Used 5 primary references - our charter, two different CA Waldorf
charters, two dependent PCS charters. Also brought in the strategic plan,
draft MOU and Alliance principles.

ii. Goals for new charter - Waldorf pedagogy & practices, operations
supportive of Waldorf, autonomy in site decision; JU notes that the
relationship work we do with the district will never be over.

iii.  What needs to be done:

1. areas we cannot complete without collaboration with Valley Vista;
meeting with & working on revision cycle.

2. Need a family handbook - use ours and collaborate with VV

3. Need feedback cycle - LO, VV, PCS staff

b. Due to the trustees Nov. 15, with appendices

i. PerByron, for feedback cycles, when do we need to get it to JU? We
should get it to JU by 10/31. Must have all appendices to JU by 10/25.
Also need to get reviewed by the lawyers - RB to schedule.

i. JU-we need feedback from VV (staff, faculty, families), LO (staff, faculty,
families), PCS staff (district has a public reading - exists outside of regular
meeting (do before agenda is approved))

iii. KW suggests holding an engagement night Monday, 10/28 - discuss the
charter and the implementation plan (draft of plan due out 10/25).

c. Governance Structure - Site Council

i.  Governance Structure of the School and Opportunities for Parent
Involvement - This model was developed by JU based on samples she
has collected, and takes the constraints of becoming a school within the

Regular Meeting of Live Oak Charter School Board October 08, 2024 page 5 of 7

22



district, how can we best maintain our autonomy and current operations.
ELAC needed if we have more than 21 English language learners. JU to
go to district to see if we can have a site council and caregiver council.
1. Site council or principle is responsible for reporting data
2. Per LD, employees are disallowed from sitting on governance
boards; Per JU, we can handle this issue through bylaws.
ii. Governance Structure - Employee Qualifications
1. Waldorf Trained Teacher definition is lifted from our current CBA;
KW suggests adding studies course suggested by advisory board
2. KTC suggests requiring charter experience for the Director
LD left 9:37 PM
4. Charter Closing Procedures (desstea-bmphress Justin Lipp)

a. Met with law team, and they provided timelines, checklists, and documents. We
need to start the process in January.

5. Annual Parent Survey (Samantha Sheppard & Justin Lipp)

a. Traditionally an early spring project, and we need to move up the timeline to help
facilitate the transition to Valley Vista. Gather feedback from LO community
regarding transition; gain insights into what is working well. Finalize by end of this
month; review in next board meeting. Questions coming up were detail about
implementation. What can be helpful. Spanish teachers? Combining classes?
Technology? Culture? Music? Bullying?

E. The board will consider the following for review and approval
No public comment.
1. Policy update: Suicide Prevention Policy (Samantha Sheppard)
a. Updated to include the how, in line with 23/24 requirements, as outlined by
Charter School Development Center (CSDC) model.
RB moved to approve, SB seconded; all in favor JL, NR, KTC, VM, SS, KW, RB, and SB
2. Policy update: Title IX Harassment Policy (Samantha Sheppard)
a. Updated with new information required 23/24, CSDC model language used.
RB moved to approve, SB seconded; all in favor JL, NR, KTC, VM, SS, KW, RB, and SB
3. Policy update: Suspension and Expulsion Policy (Samantha Sheppard)
a. Updated for 23/24
RB moved to approve, SB seconded; all in favor JL, NR, KTC, VM, SS, KW, RB, and SB

F. Board Development
No public comment.
1. Review of the annual governance calendar (Kristin Walter)

a. Please review the calendar. It's a rainbow at the end of the packet, and RB sent the
link via email.

2. Work assignment: Charter Closing Procedures (Kristin Walter)
a. SB and JL assigned

3. Work assignment: Annual Parent Survey (Sam Sheppard/Justin Lipp)
a. Kristin to ask Cole and Cheyenne

G. Topics for consideration for future board meetings

Please email future agenda items for consideration to director@liveoakcharter.org and
the Board Chairperson

Regular Meeting of Live Oak Charter School Board October 08, 2024 page 6 of 7



H. ADJOURNMENT
pm

Regular Meeting of Live Oak Charter School Board

October 08, 2024

10:15

page 7 of 7

24



Balances through 06/30/2025

Fiscal05

Account Summary-Balance

Fiscal Year 2024/25

e Adopted Revised .
FD- RSRC- Y- GOAL- FUNC- OBJT- SCH- MGMT Description 2 Encumbered  Expenditure  Accoun
Budget Budget Balance
Object 1100 - Teachers' Salar
62-0000-0-1110-1000- 1100- 000- 0000 Teachers' Salar,Instructi 1,028,920.00 1,028,920.00 809,145.94 237,984.10 18,210.04-
62-1100-0-1110-1000- 1100- 000- 0000 Teachers' Salar,Instructi 32,133.00 32,133.00 27,385.98 8,054.70 3,307.68-
62-1400-0-1110-1000- 1100- 000- 0000 Teachers' Salar,Instructi 64,462.00 64,462.00 34,332.52 10,097.80 20,031.68
Total for Object 1100 and Expense accounts 1,125,515.00 1,125,515.00 870,864.44 256,136.60 1,486.04-
Object 1130 - Teachers' Sals
62-0000-0-1110-1000- 1130- 000- 0000 Teachers' Sals,Instructio 31,000.00 31,000.00 15,068.29 6,781.85 9,149.86
62-6266-0-1110-1000-1130-000-0000 Teachers' Sals,Instructio 6,400.00 6,400.00-
Total for Object 1130 and Expense accounts 31,000.00 31,000.00 15,068.29 13,181.85 2,749.86
Object 1148 - Teacher Substit ‘
62-0000-0-1110-1000- 1148- 000- 0000 Teacher Substit,Instructi 17,000.00 17,000.00 3,245.00 13,755.00
Total for Object 1148 and Expense accounts 17,000.00 17,000.00 .00 3,245.00 13,755.00
Object 1300 - Cert Suprvsrs' ‘
62-0000-0-0000-7150-1300-000-0000 Cert Suprvsrs',Superinten 45,142.00 45,142.00 31,975.30 13,166.30 .40
62-0000-0-1110-2700- 1300- 000- 0000 Cert Suprvsrs',School Adm 107,582.00 107,582.00 74,609.09 30,721.39 2,251.52
Total for Object 1300 and Expense accounts 152,724.00 152,724.00 106,584.39 43,887.69 2,251.92
Object 2100 - Instructional A
62-0000-0-1110-1000-2100- 000- 0000 Instructional A, Instructi 70,485.00 70,485.00 50,206.44 14,766.60 5,511.96
62-0000-0-1110-1000-2100-000- RTI 1 Instructional A, Instructi 79,675.00 79,675.00 74,361.24 11,829.05 6,515.29-
62-0000-0-5760-1190-2100-000- RTI 1 Instructional A,Spec Ed-o 24,532.00 24,532.00 19,908.70 5,932.50 1,309.20-
62-3010-0-1110-1000-2100-000- RTI 1 Instructional A,Instructi 11,046.00 11,046.00 6,277.50 4,768.50
Total for Object 2100 and Expense accounts 185,738.00 185,738.00 144,476.38 38,805.65 2,455.97
Object 2130 - Instr Aides - E
62-0000-0-1110-1000-2130-000-0000 Instr Aides - E,Instructi 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
62-6266-0-1110-1000-2130-000-0000 Instr Aides - E,Instructi 1,000.00 1,000.00-
Total for Object 2130 and Expense accounts 1,000.00 1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 .00
Object 2199 - Instr Aides Oth
62-0000-0-1110-1000-2199- 000- 0000 Instr Aides Oth,Instructi 2,000.00 2,000.00 427.35 1,572.65
62-0000-0-1110-1000-2199-000- RTI 1 Instr Aides Oth,Instructi 6,000.00 6,000.00 3,474.50 2,525.50
Total for Object 2199 and Expense accounts 8,000.00 8,000.00 .00 3,901.85 4,098.15
Object 2300 - Classifed Direc
62- 0000- 0- 0000- 7300-2300- 000- CBSC Classifed Direc,Fiscal Se 56,731.00 56,731.00 40,184.09 16,546.39 .52
62-0000-0-7110-7300-2300- 000- CBSC Classifed Direc,Fiscal Se 92,796.00 92,796.00 65,730.84 27,065.64 A48-
Total for Object 2300 and Expense accounts 149,527.00 149,527.00 105,914.93 43,612.03 .04

Selection  Grouped by Account Type, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 12, Online/Offline = N, Period = 12, UnPosted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? =
N, Restricted Accts? =Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl =)

& ERP for California
Page 1 of 12

012 - Live Oak Charter School

Generated for John Azzizzi (JAZZ1ZZl), Oct 30 2024 9:56AM

25



Balances through 06/30/2025

Fiscal05

Account Summary-Balance

Fiscal Year 2024/25

FD- RSRC- Y- GOAL - FUNC- OBJT- SCH- MGMT Description Adopted Revised Encumbered Expenditure Account
Budget Budget Balance
Object 2400 - Clerical & Offi
62-0000-0-0000-7200-2400- 000- 0000 Clerical & Offi,Other Gen 40,275.00 40,275.00 28,528.04 11,746.84 12
62-0000-0-1110-2700-2400-000- 0000 Clerical & Offi,School Ad 227,966.00 227,966.00 163,963.81 64,003.13 .94-
Total for Object 2400 and Expense accounts 268,241.00 268,241.00 192,491.85 75,749.97 .82-
Object 2499 - Clerical&office ‘
62-0000-0-1110-2700-2499-000- 0000 Clerical&office,School Ad 4,000.00 4,000.00 2,256.75 1,743.25
Total for Object 2499 and Expense accounts 4,000.00 4,000.00 .00 2,256.75 1,743.25
Object 2900 - Other Classifie ‘
62-5310-0-0000-3700-2900-000- FOOD Other Classifie,Food Serv 21,132.00 21,132.00 27,441.06 8,440.85 14,749.91-
Total for Object 2900 and Expense accounts 21,132.00 21,132.00 27,441.06 8,440.85 14,749.91-
Object 2999 - Other Class Sal |
62-0000-0-5760-1190-2999-000- 0000 Other Class Sal,Spec Ed-o 600.00 600.00 242.00 358.00
Total for Object 2999 and Expense accounts 600.00 600.00 .00 242.00 358.00
Object 3101 - Benefits - Strs |
62-0000-0-0000-7150-3101-000-0000 Benefits - Strs,Superinte 8,622.00 8,622.00 6,107.42 2,514.82 .24-
62-0000-0-1110-1000-3101-000-0000 Benefits - Strs, Instructi 169,539.00 169,539.00 126,613.11 37,818.85 5,107.04
62-0000-0-1110-2700-3101-000- 0000 Benefits - Strs,School Ad 20,548.00 20,548.00 14,250.25 5,867.75 430.00
62-1100-0-1110-1000-3101-000- 0000 Benefits - Strs, Instructi 6,243.00 6,243.00 5,230.73 1,5638.45 526.18-
62-6266-0-1110-1000-3101-000-0000 Benefits - Strs, Instructi 1,222.40 1,222.40-
Total for Object 3101 and Expense accounts 204,952.00 204,952.00 152,201.51 48,962.27 3,788.22
Object 3102 - Benefits - Strs
62-0000-0-1110-1000-3102-000-0000 Benefits - Strs, Instructi 3,383.17 995.05 4,378.22-
62-0000-0-1110-1000-3102-000-RTI 1 Benefits - Strs,Instructi 3,819.22 1,123.30 4,942.52-
Total for Object 3102 and Expense accounts .00 .00 7,202.39 2,118.35 9,320.74-
Object 3201 - Benefits - Pers
62-0000-0-1110-1000-3201-000-0000 Benefits - Pers, Instructi 51,859.00 51,859.00 43,635.77 12,834.05 4,610.82-
62-1400-0-1110-1000-3201-000- 0000 Benefits - Pers, Instructi 16,629.00 16,629.00 9,286.93 2,731.45 4,610.62
Total for Object 3201 and Expense accounts 68,488.00 68,488.00 52,922.70 15,565.50 .20-
Object 3202 - Benefits - Pers
62-0000-0-0000-7200-3202-000- 0000 Benefits - Pers,Other Gen 10,894.00 10,894.00 7,716.98 3,177.58 .56-
62-0000- 0- 0000- 7300- 3202- 000- CBSC Benefits - Pers,Fiscal Se 15,346.00 15,346.00 10,869.97 4,475.87 .16
62-0000-0-1110-1000-3202-000- 0000 Benefits - Pers, Instructi 19,878.00 19,878.00 8,789.34 2,619.55 8,469.11
62-0000-0-1110-1000-3202-000- RTI 1 Benefits - Pers,Instructi 23,175.00 23,175.00 11,316.23 1,279.35 10,579.42
62-0000-0-1110-2700-3202-000-0000 Benefits - Pers,School Ad 62,747.00 62,747.00 44,352.15 17,705.55 689.30
62-0000-0-5760-1190-3202-000-0000 Benefits - Pers,Spec Ed-o 162.00 162.00 65.46 96.54

Selection  Grouped by Account Type, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 12, Online/Offline = N, Period = 12, UnPosted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? =
N, Restricted Accts? =Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl =)

& ERP for California
Page 2 of 12

012 - Live Oak Charter School

Generated for John Azzizzi (JAZZ1ZZl), Oct 30 2024 9:56AM

26



Balances through 06/30/2025

Account Summary-Balance

Fiscal Year 2024/25

FD- RSRC- Y- GOAL - FUNC- OBJT- SCH- MGMT Description Adopted Revised Encumbered Expenditure Account
Budget Budget Balance
Object 3202 - Benefits - Pers  (continued)
62-0000-0-5760-1190-3202-000-RTI 1 Benefits - Pers,Spec Ed-o 6,636.00 6,636.00 5,385.26 1,604.73 353.99-
62-0000-0-7110-7300-3202-000- CBSC Benefits - Pers,Fiscal Se 25,101.00 25,101.00 17,780.13 7,321.23 .36-
62-3010-0-1110-1000- 3202- 000- RTI 1 Benefits - Pers, Instructi 2,988.00 2,988.00 1,698.05 1,289.95
62-5310- 0-0000-3700- 3202- 000- FOOD Benefits - Pers,Food Serv 5,716.00 5,716.00 4,417.11 1,375.26 76.37-
Total for Object 3202 and Expense accounts 172,643.00 172,643.00 110,627.17 41,322.63 20,693.20
Object 3311 - Benefits - Oasd
62-0000-0-1110-1000-3311-000- 0000 Benefits - Oasd, Instructi 12,253.00 12,253.00 9,597.35 3,002.19 346.54-
62-1400-0-1110-1000-3311-000- 0000 Benefits - Oasd, Instructi 3,445.00 3,445.00 1,842.80 552.76 1,049.44
Total for Object 3311 and Expense accounts 15,698.00 15,698.00 11,440.15 3,554.95 702.90
Object 3312 - Benefits - Oasd
62-0000- 0- 0000-7200-3312-000- 0000 Benefits - Oasd,Other Gen 2,411.00 2,411.00 1,663.96 715.58 31.46
62-0000-0- 0000-7300-3312-000- CBSC Benefits - Oasd,Fiscal Se 3,326.00 3,326.00 2,349.06 977.28 .34-
62-0000-0-1110-1000-3312-000-0000 Benefits - Oasd, Instructi 3,804.00 3,804.00 2,014.50 619.00 1,170.50
62-0000-0-1110-1000-3312-000- RTI 1 Benefits - Oasd, Instructi 5,312.00 5,312.00 3,370.59 584.18 1,357.23
62-0000-0-1110-2700-3312-000- 0000 Benefits - Oasd,School Ad 15,724.00 15,724.00 9,837.22 4,068.95 1,817.83
62-0000-0-5760-1190-3312-000-0000 Benefits - Oasd,Spec Ed-o 37.00 37.00 15.01 21.99
62-0000-0-5760-1190-3312-000- RTI 1 Benefits - Oasd,Spec Ed-o 1,521.00 1,521.00 1,234.37 367.82 81.19-
62-0000-0-7110-7300-3312-000- CBSC Benefits - Oasd,Fiscal Se 5,441.00 5,441.00 3,842.51 1,598.59 .10-
62-3010-0-1110-1000-3312-000-RTI 1 Benefits - Oasd,Instructi 685.00 685.00 389.20 295.80
62-5310-0- 0000-3700-3312-000- FOOD Benefits - Oasd,Food Serv 1,310.00 1,310.00 1,701.19 523.30 914.49-
62-6266-0-1110-1000-3312-000- 0000 Benefits - Oasd, Instructi 62.00 62.00-
Total for Object 3312 and Expense accounts 39,571.00 39,571.00 26,013.40 9,920.91 3,636.69
Object 3331 - Benefits - Medi
62-0000-0-0000-7150-3331-000-0000 Benefits - Medi,Superinte 647.00 647.00 457.13 189.61 .26
62-0000-0-1110-1000-3331-000- 0000 Benefits - Medi,Instructi 15,771.00 15,771.00 11,438.45 3,508.19 824.36
62-0000-0-1110-2700-3331-000-0000 Benefits - Medi,School Ad 1,542.00 1,542.00 1,066.75 442.43 32.82
62-1100-0-1110-1000-3331-000- 0000 Benefits - Medi,Instructi 464.00 464.00 347.48 104.08 12.44
62-1400-0-1110-1000-3331-000- 0000 Benefits - Medi,Instructi 806.00 806.00 430.95 129.27 24578
62-6266-0-1110-1000-3331-000- 0000 Benefits - Medi,Instructi 92.80 92.80-
Total for Object 3331 and Expense accounts 19,230.00 19,230.00 13,740.76 4,466.38 1,022.86
Object 3332 - Benefits - Medi
62-0000- 0- 0000-7200-3332-000- 0000 Benefits - Medi,Other Gen 564.00 564.00 389.30 167.32 7.38
62-0000- 0- 0000-7300- 3332-000- CBSC Benefits - Medi,Fiscal Se 778.00 778.00 549.44 228.58 .02-
62-0000-0-1110-1000-3332-000- 0000 Benefits - Medi,Instructi 890.00 890.00 728.11 220.34 58.45-

Selection  Grouped by Account Type, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 12, Online/Offline = N, Period = 12, UnPosted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? =

& ERP for California
Page 3 of 12

N, Restricted Accts? =Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl =)

012 - Live Oak Charter School Generated for John Azzizzi (JAZZ1ZZl), Oct 30 2024 9:56AM
27



Balances through 06/30/2025

Account Summary-Balance

Fiscal Year 2024/25

FD- RSRC- Y- GOAL - FUNC- OBJT- SCH- MGMT Description Adopted Revised Encumbered Expenditure Account
Budget Budget Balance
Object 3332 - Benefits - Medi  (continued)
62-0000-0-1110-1000-3332-000- RTI 1 Benefits - Medi,Instructi 1,242.00 1,242.00 1,078.31 221.94 58.25-
62-0000-0-1110-2700-3332-000-0000 Benefits - Medi,School Ad 3,676.00 3,676.00 2,300.61 951.67 423.72
62-0000-0-5760-1190-3332-000-0000 Benefits - Medi,Spec Ed-o 9.00 9.00 3.51 5.49
62-0000- 0-5760- 1190- 3332- 000- RTI 1 Benefits - Medi,Spec Ed-o 356.00 356.00 288.66 86.02 18.68-
62-0000-0-7110-7300-3332-000- CBSC Benefits - Medi,Fiscal Se 1,273.00 1,273.00 898.62 373.86 .52
62-3010-0-1110-1000-3332-000-RTI 1 Benefits - Medi,Instructi 160.00 160.00 91.00 69.00
62-5310-0-0000-3700-3332-000- FOOD Benefits - Medi,Food Serv 306.00 306.00 397.97 122.41 214.38-
62-6266-0-1110-1000- 3332-000- 0000 Benefits - Medi,Instructi 14.50 14.50-
Total for Object 3332 and Expense accounts 9,254.00 9,254.00 6,631.02 2,481.15 141.83
Object 3401 - H & W Benefits
62-0000- 0-0000-7150-3401-000-0000 H & W Benefits,Superinten 5,172.00 5,172.00 3,657.41 1,510.74 3.85
62-0000-0-1110-1000-3401-000-0000 H & W Benefits,Instructio 182,062.00 182,062.00 135,411.74 35,850.25 10,800.01
62-0000-0-1110-2700-3401-000-0000 H & W Benefits,School Adm 12,066.00 12,066.00 8,534.14 3,525.03 6.83
62-1100-0-1110-1000- 3401-000- 0000 H & W Benefits, Instructio 6,205.00 6,205.00 4,728.95 1,390.90 85.15
62-1400-0-1110-1000-3401-000-0000 H & W Benefits, Instructio 8,245.00 8,245.00 6,384.50 1,877.80 17.30-
Total for Object 3401 and Expense accounts 213,750.00 213,750.00 158,716.74 44,154.72 10,878.54
Object 3402 - H & W Benefits
62-0000- 0- 0000-7200- 3402-000- 0000 H & W Benefits,Other Gene 8,635.00 8,635.00 6,108.50 2,523.07 3.43
62-0000-0-0000-7300-3402-000-CBSC H & W Benefits,Fiscal Ser 6,450.00 6,450.00 4,578.27 1,885.17 13.44-
62-0000-0-1110-1000-3402-000-0000 H & W Benefits, Instructio 13,099.00 13,099.00 13,099.00
62-0000-0-1110-2700- 3402-000- 0000 H & W Benefits,School Adm 21,893.00 21,893.00 24,145.11 9,233.02 11,485.13-
62-0000-0-5760-1190-3402-000-RTI 1 H & W Benefits,Spec Ed-ot 67.00 67.00 67.00
62-0000-0-7110-7300-3402-000- CBSC H & W Benefits,Fiscal Ser 10,549.00 10,549.00 7,488.50 3,083.50 23.00-
Total for Object 3402 and Expense accounts 60,693.00 60,693.00 42,320.38 16,724.76 1,647.86
Object 3501 - Benefits - Sui
62-0000- 0- 0000-7150-3501-000- 0000 Benefits - Sui,Superinten 22.00 22.00 15.64 6.56 .20-
62-0000-0-1110-1000-3501-000-0000 Benefits - Sui,Instructio 1,044.00 1,044.00 394.23 120.93 528.84
62-0000-0-1110-2700-3501-000-0000 Benefits - Sui,School Adm 53.00 53.00 36.89 15.25 .86
62-1100-0-1110-1000-3501-000-0000 Benefits - Sui,Instructio 16.00 16.00 11.90 3.58 .52
62-1400-0-1110-1000-3501-000-0000 Benefits - Sui,Instructio 28.00 28.00 14.79 4.47 8.74
62-6266-0-1110-1000-3501-000-0000 Benefits - Sui,Instructio 3.17 3.17-
Total for Object 3501 and Expense accounts 1,163.00 1,163.00 473.45 153.96 535.59
Object 3502 - Benefits - Sui |
62-0000-0-0000-7200-3502-000-0000 Benefits - Sui,Other Gene 19.00 19.00 13.43 5.77 .20-

Selection  Grouped by Account Type, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 12, Online/Offline = N, Period = 12, UnPosted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? =

N, Restricted Accts? =Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl =)

& ERP for California
Page 4 of 12

012 - Live Oak Charter School

Generated for John Azzizzi (JAZZ1ZZl), Oct 30 2024 9:56AM

28



Balances through 06/30/2025

Account Summary-Balance

Fiscal Year 2024/25

FD- RSRC- Y- GOAL - FUNC- OBJT- SCH- MGMT Description Adopted Revised Encumbered Expenditure Account
Budget Budget Balance
Object 3502 - Benefits - Sui  (continued)
62-0000-0-0000-7300-3502-000- CBSC Benefits - Sui,Fiscal Ser 27.00 27.00 18.87 7.89 24
62-0000-0-1110-1000-3502-000- 0000 Benefits - Sui,Instructio 31.00 31.00 24.99 7.57 1.56-
62-0000-0-1110-1000- 3502- 000- RTI 1 Benefits - Sui,Instructio 43.00 43.00 37.23 7.66 1.89-
62-0000-0-1110-2700-3502-000- 0000 Benefits - Sui,School Adm 126.00 126.00 79.39 32.85 13.76
62-0000-0-5760-1190-3502-000- 0000 Benefits - Sui,Spec Ed-ot 12 12-
62-0000-0-5760-1190-3502-000- RTI 1 Benefits - Sui,Spec Ed-ot 12.00 12.00 10.03 2.98 1.01-
62-0000-0-7110-7300-3502- 000- CBSC Benefits - Sui,Fiscal Ser 44.00 44.00 31.11 12.87 .02
62-3010-0-1110-1000-3502-000- RTI 1 Benefits - Sui,Instructio 6.00 6.00 3.15 2.85
62-5310-0-0000-3700-3502- 000- FOOD Benefits - Sui,Food Servi 11.00 11.00 13.77 4.23 7.00-
62-6266-0-1110-1000-3502-000-0000 Benefits - Sui,Instructio .50 .50-
Total for Object 3502 and Expense accounts 319.00 319.00 228.82 85.59 4.59
Object 3601 - Benefits - Wcom
62-0000-0-0000-7150-3601-000-0000 Benefits - Wcom,Superinte 469.00 469.00 332.52 136.92 A44-
62-0000-0-1110-1000-3601-000-0000 Benefits - Wcom,Instructi 11,225.00 11,225.00 8,571.91 2,579.34 73.75
62-0000-0-1110-2700-3601-000-0000 Benefits - Wcom,School Ad 1,120.00 1,120.00 775.88 319.48 24.64
62-1100-0-1110-1000-3601- 000- 0000 Benefits - Wcom, Instructi 340.00 340.00 284.75 83.75 28.50-
62-1400-0-1110-1000-3601- 000- 0000 Benefits - Wcom, Instructi 639.00 639.00 357.00 105.00 177.00
62-6266-0-1110-1000-3601-000-0000 Benefits - Wcom,Instructi 66.56 66.56-
Total for Object 3601 and Expense accounts 13,793.00 13,793.00 10,322.06 3,291.05 179.89
Object 3602 - Benefits - Wcom
62-0000-0-0000-7200-3602-000-0000 Benefits - Wcom,Other Gen 419.00 419.00 296.82 122.22 .04-
62- 0000- 0- 0000- 7300- 3602- 000- CBSC Benefits - Wcom,Fiscal Se 590.00 590.00 418.03 172.13 .16-
62-0000-0-1110-1000-3602- 000- 0000 Benefits - Wcom,Instructi 764.00 764.00 522.24 158.03 83.73
62-0000-0-1110-1000- 3602-000- RTI 1 Benefits - Wcom,Instructi 891.00 891.00 773.50 159.18 41.68-
62-0000-0-1110-2700-3602- 000- 0000 Benefits - Wcom,School Ad 2,413.00 2,413.00 1,705.10 689.05 18.85
62-0000- 0-5760-1190-3602-000- 0000 Benefits - Wcom,Spec Ed-o 6.00 6.00 2.52 3.48
62-0000-0-5760-1190-3602-000- RTI 1 Benefits - Wcom,Spec Ed-o 255.00 255.00 207.06 61.70 13.76-
62- 0000-0-7110-7300- 3602- 000- CBSC Benefits - Wcom,Fiscal Se 965.00 965.00 683.57 281.47 .04-
62-3010-0-1110-1000-3602-000- RTI 1 Benefits - Wcom,Instructi 115.00 115.00 65.30 49.70
62-5310-0-0000-3700-3602-000- FOOD Benefits - Wcom,Food Serv 220.00 220.00 285.43 87.80 153.23-
62-6266-0-1110-1000- 3602-000- 0000 Benefits - Wcom,Instructi 10.40 10.40-
Total for Object 3602 and Expense accounts 6,638.00 6,638.00 4,891.75 1,809.80 63.55-
Object 4110 - Textbooks |
62-6300-0-1110-1000-4110-000- 0000 Textbooks,Instruction,Reg 3,200.00 3,200.00 1,415.54 1,784.46

Selection  Grouped by Account Type, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 12, Online/Offline = N, Period = 12, UnPosted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? =

& ERP for California
Page 5 of 12

N, Restricted Accts? =Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl =)

012 - Live Oak Charter School Generated for John Azzizzi (JAZZ1ZZl), Oct 30 2024 9:56AM



Fiscal05 Account Summary-Balance

Balances through 06/30/2025

Fiscal Year 2024/25
Adopted Revised Account

FD- RSRC- Y- GOAL - FUNC- OBJT- SCH- MGMT Description Budget Budget Encumbered Expenditure Balance
Total for Object 4110 and Expense accounts 3,200.00 3,200.00 .00 1,415.54 1,784.46
Object 4210 - Books Other Tha
62-0000-0-1110-1000-4210-000- 0000 Books Other Tha, Instructi 200.00 200.00 81.74 118.26
62-0000-0-1110-1000-4210-000- LI BR Books Other Tha, Instructi 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
Total for Object 4210 and Expense accounts 1,200.00 1,200.00 .00 81.74 1,118.26
Object 4300 - Materials & Sup |
62-9038-0-1110-1000-4300-000- 0000 Materials & Sup, Instructi 2,500.00 2,500.00 356.81 2,143.19
Total for Object 4300 and Expense accounts 2,500.00 2,500.00 .00 356.81 2,143.19
Object 4310 - Instructional M ‘
62-0000-0-1110-1000-4310-000- 5t h1 Instructional M, Instructi 1,875.00 1,875.00 1,142.14 732.86
62-0000-0-1110-1000-4310- 000- BUDG Instructional M, Instructi 3,068.00- 3,068.00- 3,068.00-
62-0000-0-1110-1000-4310-000- GAME Instructional M,Instructi 765.00 765.00 16.88 748.12
62-0000-0-1110-1000-4310- 000- HAND Instructional M, Instructi 4,570.00 4,570.00 2,149.23 2,420.77
62-0000-0-1110-1000-4310-000- MATH Instructional M, Instructi 600.00 600.00 308.46 291.54
62-0000-0-1110-1000-4310-000- M DD Instructional M, Instructi 4,875.00 4,875.00 1,177.50 3,697.50
62-0000-0-1110-1000-4310-000- RSP1 Instructional M, Instructi 500.00 500.00 613.65 113.65-
62-0000-0-1110-1000-4310-000- RTI 1 Instructional M, Instructi 400.00 400.00 2,696.88 2,296.88-
62-6300-0-1110-1000-4310-000- 1st 1 Instructional M, Instructi 2,825.00 2,825.00 1,763.86 1,061.14
62-6300-0-1110-1000-4310-000-2nd1 Instructional M, Instructi 1,875.00 1,875.00 1,956.90 81.90-
62-6300-0-1110-1000-4310-000- 3RD1 Instructional M,Instructi 1,875.00 1,875.00 1,163.09 711.91
62-6300-0-1110-1000-4310-000-4TH1 Instructional M, Instructi 1,875.00 1,875.00 1,698.66 176.34
62-6300-0-1110-1000-4310- 000- BUDG Instructional M, Instructi 3,068.00 3,068.00 3,068.00
62-6300-0-1110-1000-4310-000- KND1 Instructional M,Instructi 1,875.00 1,875.00 1,202.67 672.33
62-6300-0-1110-1000-4310-000- knd2 Instructional M, Instructi 1,875.00 1,875.00 497.82 1,377.18
Total for Object 4310 and Expense accounts 25,785.00 25,785.00 .00 16,387.74 9,397.26
Object 4340 - Computer Sftwar
62-0000-0-1110-1000-4340-000-0000 Computer Sftwar,Instructi 199.00 199.00-
62-0000-0-1110-2700-4340-000- 0000 Computer Sftwar,School Ad 425.00 425.00 94.50 330.50
Total for Object 4340 and Expense accounts 425.00 425.00 .00 293.50 131.50
Object 4350 - Office Supplies |
62-0000-0-1110-2700-4350- 000- 0000 Office Supplies,School Ad 5,000.00 5,000.00 1,978.94 3,021.06
Total for Object 4350 and Expense accounts 5,000.00 5,000.00 .00 1,978.94 3,021.06
Object 4370 - Custodial Suppl |
62-0000-0-1110-8200-4370-000- JANI Custodial Suppl,Operation 7,000.00 7,000.00 2,508.35 4,491.65
Total for Object 4370 and Expense accounts 7,000.00 7,000.00 .00 2,508.35 4,491.65

Selection  Grouped by Account Type, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 12, Online/Offline = N, Period = 12, UnPosted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? =
N, Restricted Accts? =Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl =)

012 - Live Oak Charter School

& ERP for California
Page 6 of 12

Generated for John Azzizzi (JAZZ1ZZl), Oct 30 2024 9:56AM




Balances through 06/30/2025

Fiscal05

Account Summary-Balance

Fiscal Year 2024/25

FD- RSRC- Y- GOAL - FUNC- OBJT- SCH- MGMT Description Adopted Revised Encumbered Expenditure Account
Budget Budget Balance
Object 4390 - Other Supplies
62-0000-0-1110-1000-4390-000-0000 Other Supplies,Instructio 800.00 800.00 800.00
62-0000-0-1110-1000-4390- 000- GARD Other Supplies,Instructio 500.00 500.00 500.00
62-0000-0-1110-1000-4390- 000- GRAD Other Supplies,Instructio 1,100.00 1,100.00 1,100.00
62-0000-0-1110-1000-4390-000- K1SN Other Supplies,Instructio 2,500.00 2,500.00 425.01 2,074.99
62-0000-0-1110-1000-4390-000- K2SN Other Supplies,Instructio 2,500.00 2,500.00 799.50 1,700.50
62-0000-0- 1110-2420-4390-000- LI BR Other Supplies,Instructio 500.00 500.00 500.00
62-0000-0-1110-2700-4390-000- 0000 Other Supplies,School Adm 200.00 200.00 264.40 64.40-
62-0000-0-1110-2700-4390- 000- COPY Other Supplies,School Adm 4,568.00 4,568.00 1,321.94 3,246.06
62-0000-0-1110-2700-4390- 000- FEST Other Supplies,School Adm 1,500.00 1,500.00 302.74 1,197.26
62-0000-0-1110-8200-4390-000-0000 Other Supplies,Operations 1,550.00 1,550.00 1,550.00
62-0000-0-1110-8200-4390-000- NTN Other Supplies,Operations 6,000.00 6,000.00 4,008.37 1,991.63
62-5310-0-0000-3700-4390- 000- FOOD Other Supplies,Food Servi 350.00 350.00 481.65 131.65-
62-9038-0-1110-1000-4390-000- TRI P Other Supplies,Instructio 5,785.00 5,785.00 1,018.22 4,766.78
62-9090-0-1110-8300-4390-000-0000 Other Supplies,Security,R 1,000.00 1,000.00 283.81 716.19
Total for Object 4390 and Expense accounts 28,853.00 28,853.00 .00 8,905.64 19,947.36
Object 4400 - Inventory Suppl
62-0000-0-1110-1000-4400-000- 0000 Inventory Suppl,Instructi 4,500.00 4,500.00 5,663.62 1,163.62-
62-0000-0-1110-8200-4400-000- 0000 Inventory Suppl,Operation 3,693.73 3,693.73-
Total for Object 4400 and Expense accounts 4,500.00 4,500.00 .00 9,357.35 4,857.35-
Object 4710 - Food Purchases ‘
62-5310-0-0000-3700-4710-000- FOOD Food Purchases,Food Servi 2,000.00 2,000.00 190.86 1,809.14
Total for Object 4710 and Expense accounts 2,000.00 2,000.00 .00 190.86 1,809.14
Object 5200 - Travel & Confer |
62-0000- 0- 0000-7300-5200- 000- CBSC Travel & Confer,Fiscal Se 250.00 250.00 250.00
62-0000-0-1110-1000-5200-000- 0000 Travel & Confer,Instructi 1,750.00 1,750.00 3,600.00 1,850.00-
62-0000-0-1110-2700-5200-000- 0000 Travel & Confer,School Ad 600.00 600.00 75.00 525.00
62-0000- 0-7110-7300- 5200- 000- CBSC Travel & Confer,Fiscal Se 650.00 650.00 650.00
62-6266-0-1110-1000-5200- 000- 0000 Travel & Confer,Instructi 20,000.00 20,000.00 8,121.50 11,878.50
62-9038-0-1110-1000-5200-000- TRI P Travel & Confer,Instructi 600.00 600.00 556.94 43.06
Total for Object 5200 and Expense accounts 23,850.00 23,850.00 .00 12,353.44 11,496.56
Object 5300 - Dues & Membersh |
62-0000-0-1110-2700-5300-000- 0000 Dues & Membersh,School Ad 3,500.00 3,500.00 2,260.00 1,240.00
Total for Object 5300 and Expense accounts 3,500.00 3,500.00 .00 2,260.00 1,240.00

Object 5450 - Other Insurance

Selection  Grouped by Account Type, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 12, Online/Offline = N, Period = 12, UnPosted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? =

N, Restricted Accts? =Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl =)

& ERP for California
Page 7 of 12

012 - Live Oak Charter School

Generated for John Azzizzi (JAZZ1ZZl), Oct 30 2024 9:56AM

31



Balances through 06/30/2025

Fiscal05

Account Summary-Balance

Fiscal Year 2024/25

. Adopted Revised .
FD- RSRC- Y- GOAL- FUNC- OBJT- SCH- MGMT Description P vi Encumbered Expenditure Account
Budget Budget Balance
Object 5450 - Other Insurance
62-0000-0-1110-2700-5450-000- 0000 Other Insurance,School Ad 31,634.00 31,634.00 29,414.00 2,220.00
Total for Object 5450 and Expense accounts 31,634.00 31,634.00 .00 29,414.00 2,220.00
Object 5520 - Electricity |
62-0000-0-1110-8200-5520-000- 0000 Electricity,Operations,Re 49,450.00 49,450.00 4,246.48 45,203.52
Total for Object 5520 and Expense accounts 49,450.00 49,450.00 .00 4,246.48 45,203.52
Object 5530 - Water ‘
62-0000-0-1110-8200-5530-000-0000 Water,Operations,Regular 23,000.00 23,000.00 23,000.00
Total for Object 5530 and Expense accounts 23,000.00 23,000.00 .00 .00 23,000.00
Object 5550 - Laundry And Cle |
62-0000-0-1110-8200-5550- 000- JANI Laundry And Cle,Operation 35,460.00 35,460.00 3,600.00 31,860.00
Total for Object 5550 and Expense accounts 35,460.00 35,460.00 .00 3,600.00 31,860.00
Object 5560 - Waste Disposal ‘
62-0000-0-1110-8200-5560-000- 0000 Waste Disposal,Operations 9,500.00 9,500.00 3,287.76 6,212.24
Total for Object 5560 and Expense accounts 9,500.00 9,500.00 .00 3,287.76 6,212.24
Object 5570 - Pest Control ‘
62-0000-0-1110-8200-5570-000- 0000 Pest Control,Operations,R 2,750.00 2,750.00 990.00 1,760.00
Total for Object 5570 and Expense accounts 2,750.00 2,750.00 .00 990.00 1,760.00
Object 5590 - Other Housekeep ‘
62-0000-0-1110-8200-5590-000- 0000 Other Housekeep,Operation 12,000.00 12,000.00 5,111.50 6,888.50
Total for Object 5590 and Expense accounts 12,000.00 12,000.00 .00 5,111.50 6,888.50
Object 5600 - Rentals And Lea |
62-0000-0-1110-8200-5600-000-0000 Rentals And Lea,Operation 7,500.00 7,500.00 7,500.00
62-0000-0-1110-8200-5600- 000- COPY Rentals And Lea,Operation 9,421.00 9,421.00 2,429.16 6,991.84
62-0000-0-1110-8200-5600-000- FAI R Rentals And Lea,Operation 93,240.00 93,240.00 48,336.13 44,903.87
62-0000-0-1110-8200-5600- 000- PORT Rentals And Lea,Operation 18,109.00 18,109.00 7,275.96 10,833.04
62-2600-0-8500-5900-5600- 000- CARE Rentals And Lea,Other Com 12,720.00 12,720.00 12,720.00
Total for Object 5600 and Expense accounts 140,990.00 140,990.00 .00 58,041.25 82,948.75
Object 5630 - Repairs ‘
62-0000-0-1110-8200-5630-000- ROP1 Repairs,Operations,Regula 20,000.00 20,000.00 613.69 19,386.31
Total for Object 5630 and Expense accounts 20,000.00 20,000.00 .00 613.69 19,386.31
Object 5800 - Other Svcs & Op |
62-0000-0-0000-7100-5800-000- FEES Other Svcs & Op,Board & S 360.00 360.00 705.25 345.25-
62- 0000- 0- 0000- 7600- 5800- 000- DI ST Other Svcs & Op,All Other 29,562.00 29,562.00 29,562.00

Selection  Grouped by Account Type, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 12, Online/Offline = N, Period = 12, UnPosted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? =
N, Restricted Accts? =Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl =)

& ERP for California
Page 8 of 12

012 - Live Oak Charter School

Generated for John Azzizzi (JAZZ1ZZl), Oct 30 2024 9:56AM

32



Balances through 06/30/2025

Fiscal05

Account Summary-Balance

Fiscal Year 2024/25

o Adopted Revised . Acc
FD- RSRC- Y- GOAL - FUNC- OBJT- SCH- MGMT Description P Encumbered Expenditure ount
Budget Budget Balance
Object 5800 - Other Svcs & Op  (continued)
62-0000-0-1110-1000-5800-000- 0000 Other Svcs & Op,Instructi 1,000.00 1,000.00 148.14 851.86
62-0000-0-1110-1000-5800-000-TRI P Other Svcs & Op,Instructi 785.00 785.00 1,862.00 1,077.00-
62-0000-0-1110-8200-5800-000- JANI Other Svcs & Op,Operation 1,500.00 1,500.00-
62-0000-0-1110-8300-5800-000- 0000 Other Svcs & Op,Security, 300.00 300.00 300.00
62-2600-0- 8500- 5900- 5800- 000- CARE Other Svcs & Op,Other Com 56,000.00 56,000.00 12,750.00 43,250.00
62-5310-0-0000-3700-5800-000- FOOD Other Svcs & Op,Food Serv 18,000.00 18,000.00 3,542.00 14,458.00
62-9033-0-8500-5900-5800- 000- CARE Other Svcs & Op,Other Com 297.00 297.00-
62-9038-0-1110-1000- 5800- 000- TRI P Other Svcs & Op,Instructi 13,615.00 13,615.00 1,481.00 12,134.00
62-9090-0-1110-8300-5800-000- 0000 Other Svcs & Op,Security, 250.00 250.00 250.00
Total for Object 5800 and Expense accounts 119,872.00 119,872.00 .00 22,285.39 97,586.61
Object 5817 - Scoe Data Proce
62-0000-0-1110-1000-5817-000- 0000 Scoe Data Proce, Instructi 11,681.00 11,681.00 11,681.00
Total for Object 5817 and Expense accounts 11,681.00 11,681.00 .00 .00 11,681.00
Object 5821 - Audit Costs
62-0000-0-1110-7191-5821-000- 0000 Audit Costs,External Fina 22,000.00 22,000.00 6,475.35 15,524.65
Total for Object 5821 and Expense accounts 22,000.00 22,000.00 .00 6,475.35 15,524.65
Object 5823 - Legal Costs |
62-0000-0-1110-2700-5823-000- 0000 Legal Costs,School Admini 5,000.00 5,000.00 352.50 4,647.50
Total for Object 5823 and Expense accounts 5,000.00 5,000.00 .00 352.50 4,647.50
Object 5825 - Advertisement ( |
62-0000-0-0000-7200-5825-000-0000 Advertisement (,Other Gen 500.00 500.00 500.00
62-0000-0-1110-2700-5825-000-0000 Advertisement (,School Ad 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
Total for Object 5825 and Expense accounts 1,500.00 1,500.00 .00 .00 1,500.00
Object 5830 - Professional/co ‘
62-0000-0-1705-1000-5830-000-0000 Professional/co,Instructi 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
Total for Object 5830 and Expense accounts 1,000.00 1,000.00 .00 .00 1,000.00
Object 5860 - Other Employmen ‘
62-0000-0-1110-2700-5860-000- 0000 Other Employmen,School Ad 500.00 500.00 500.00
Total for Object 5860 and Expense accounts 500.00 500.00 .00 .00 500.00
Object 5862 - Fingerprinting ‘
62-0000-0-1110-2700-5862-000- 0000 Fingerprinting,School Adm 2,000.00 2,000.00 741.00 1,259.00
Total for Object 5862 and Expense accounts 2,000.00 2,000.00 .00 741.00 1,259.00

Object 5911 - Telephone

Selection  Grouped by Account Type, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 12, Online/Offline = N, Period = 12, UnPosted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? =
N, Restricted Accts? =Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl =)

& ERP for California
Page 9 of 12

012 - Live Oak Charter School

Generated for John Azzizzi (JAZZ1ZZl), Oct 30 2024 9:56AM

33



Balances through 06/30/2025

Fiscal05

Account Summary-Balance

Fiscal Year 2024/25

e Adopted Revised . Account
FD- RSRC- Y- GOAL - FUNC- OBJT- SCH- MGMT Description P Encumbered Expenditure
Budget Budget Balance
Object 5911 - Telephone
62-0000-0-1110-8200-5911-000-0000 Telephone,Operations,Regu 3,750.00 3,750.00 1,385.32 2,364.68
Total for Object 5911 and Expense accounts 3,750.00 3,750.00 .00 1,385.32 2,364.68
Object 5940 - Internet ‘
62-0000-0-1110-2700-5940-000- 0000 Internet,School Administ, 20,070.00 20,070.00 12,953.60 7,116.40
Total for Object 5940 and Expense accounts 20,070.00 20,070.00 .00 12,953.60 7,116.40
Object 5950 - Postage ‘
62-0000-0-1110-2700-5950-000- 0000 Postage,School Administ,R 1,100.00 1,100.00 849.61 250.39
Total for Object 5950 and Expense accounts 1,100.00 1,100.00 .00 849.61 250.39
Object 6900 - Depr Exp |
62-0000-0-1110-8400-6900-000-0000 Depr Exp,Oth Plant Maint, 1,081.00 1,081.00 360.40 720.60
Total for Object 6900 and Expense accounts 1,081.00 1,081.00 .00 360.40 720.60
Object 7141 - Oth Tuitn, Exce |
62-0000-0-5001-9200-7141-000-0000 Oth Tuitn, Exce,Transfers 207,480.00 207,480.00 207,480.00
Total for Object 7141 and Expense accounts 207,480.00 207,480.00 .00 .00 207,480.00
Object 8011 - Revenue Limit S
L. Adopted Revised Account
FD- RSRC- Y- GOAL- FUNC- OBJT- SCH- MGMT Description Revenue
Budget Budget Balance
62-0000- 0- 0000- 0000-8011-000- 0000 Revenue Limit S,Unrestric 1,163,636.00 1,163,636.00 198,087.00 965,549.00
Total for Object 8011 and Revenue accounts 1,163,636.00 1,163,636.00 198,087.00 965,549.00
Object 8012 - EPA |
62- 1400- 0- 0000- 0000- 8012-000- 0000 EPA,EPA 94,254.00 94,254.00 26,480.00 67,774.00
Total for Object 8012 and Revenue accounts 94,254.00 94,254.00 26,480.00 67,774.00
Object 8019 - Revenue Limit S |
62-0000-0-0000-0000-8019-000-0000 Revenue Limit S,Unrestric 121,694.00- 121,694.00
Total for Object 8019 and Revenue accounts .00 .00 121,694.00- 121,694.00
Object 8096 - In Lieu Of Prop |
62- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 8096- 000- 0000 In Lieu Of Prop,Unrestric 1,698,350.00 1,698,350.00 402,015.00 1,296,335.00
62-0000-0-0000-0000- 8096-000- PY0OO In Lieu Of Prop,Unrestric 121,694.00 121,694.00-
Total for Object 8096 and Revenue accounts 1,698,350.00 1,698,350.00 523,709.00 1,174,641.00
Object 8290 - All Other Feder |
62-3010-0-0000- 0000- 8290-000- 0000 All Other Feder,Title | 15,000.00 15,000.00 15,000.00
Total for Object 8290 and Revenue accounts 15,000.00 15,000.00 .00 15,000.00

Selection  Grouped by Account Type, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 12, Online/Offline = N, Period = 12, UnPosted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? =
N, Restricted Accts? =Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl =)

& ERP for California
Page 10 of 12

012 - Live Oak Charter School

Generated for John Azzizzi (JAZZ1ZZl), Oct 30 2024 9:56AM

34



Balances through 06/30/2025

Account Summary-Balance

Fiscal Year 2024/25

FD- RSRC- Y- GOAL - FUNC- OBJT- SCH- MGMT Description Adopted Revised Revenue Account
Budget Budget Balance
Object 8550 - Mandated Cost R
62-0000- 0- 0000-0000- 8550- 000- 0000 Mandated Cost R,Unrestric 4,742.00 4,742.00 4,742.00
Total for Object 8550 and Revenue accounts 4,742.00 4,742.00 .00 4,742.00
Object 8560 - State Lottery R
62-1100- 0- 0000- 0000- 8560- 000- 0000 State Lottery R,State Lot 45,401.00 45,401.00 45,401.00
62-1100-0-0000-0000-8560-000- PYOO State Lottery R,State Lot 330.47 330.47-
62-6300-0-0000-0000-8560-000-0000 State Lottery R,Lottery - 18,468.00 18,468.00 18,468.00
62-6300- 0- 0000- 0000- 8560- 000- PYOO State Lottery R,Lottery - 1,138.99 1,138.99-
Total for Object 8560 and Revenue accounts 63,869.00 63,869.00 1,469.46 62,399.54
Object 8590 - All Other State
62-0000-0- 0000-0000- 8590- 000- 0000 All Other State,Unrestric 202.00 202.00 202.00
62-2600-0- 0000-0000- 8590- 000- 0000 All Other State,ELO Progr 68,720.00 68,720.00 14,239.00 54,481.00
62-6266-0-0000-0000- 8590- 000- 0000 All Other State,Ed Effect 20,000.00 20,000.00 16,993.83 3,006.17
62- 6546- 0-5001-0000- 8590- 000- 0000 All Other State,Mental He 3,731.00 3,731.00-
62-6770-7-0000-0000-8590- 000- 0000 All Other State,Arts & Mu 6,209.00 6,209.00-
Total for Object 8590 and Revenue accounts 88,922.00 88,922.00 41,172.83 47,749.17
Object 8660 - Interest ‘
62-0000-0-0000-0000-8660-000-0000 Interest,Unrestricted/no 18,000.00 18,000.00 10,236.33 7,763.67
Total for Object 8660 and Revenue accounts 18,000.00 18,000.00 10,236.33 7,763.67
Object 8677 - Interagency Svc ‘
62-0000-0-7110-0000-8677-000- CBSC Interagency Svc,Unrestric 136,183.00 136,183.00 79,341.50 56,841.50
Total for Object 8677 and Revenue accounts 136,183.00 136,183.00 79,341.50 56,841.50
Object 8699 - All Other Local |
62-0000-0- 0000-0000- 8699- 000- 0000 All Other Local,Unrestric 10,000.00 10,000.00 2,107.00 7,893.00
62-0000- 0- 0000-0000- 8699- 000- FUND All Other Local,Unrestric 104,000.00 104,000.00 104,000.00
62-9038-0-0000-0000- 8699- 000- 0000 All Other Local,Grants - 2,500.00 2,500.00 2,500.00
62-9038- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 000- FUND All Other Local,Grants - 20,000.00 20,000.00 20,000.00
62-9038-0-0000-0000- 8699- 000- PEFx All Other Local,Grants - 537.50 537.50-
62-9090-0-0000-0000-8699-000-0000 All Other Local,Resig Saf 1,250.00 1,250.00 1,250.00
Total for Object 8699 and Revenue accounts 137,750.00 137,750.00 2,644.50 135,105.50
Object 8980 - Contribute From ‘
62-0000-0-0000-0000-8980-000-0000 Contribute From,Unrestric 16,779.00- 16,779.00- 16,779.00-

Selection  Grouped by Account Type, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 12, Online/Offline = N, Period = 12, UnPosted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? =

& ERP for California
Page 11 of 12

N, Restricted Accts? =Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl =)

012 - Live Oak Charter School Generated for John Azzizzi (JAZZ1ZZl), Oct 30 2024 9:56AM



Fiscal05 Account Summary-Balance

Balances through 06/30/2025 Fiscal Year 2024/25
Adopted Revised Account
FD- RSRC- Y- GOAL- FUNC- OBJT- SCH- MGMT Description P Revenue
Budget Budget Balance
Object 8980 - Contribute From (continued)
62-5310-0-0000-0000-8980-000- 0000 Contribute From,Child Nut 49,045.00 49,045.00 49,045.00
62-6266-0-0000-0000-8980-000-0000 Contribute From,Ed Effect 32,266.00- 32,266.00- 32,266.00-
Total for Object 8980 and Revenue accounts .00 .00 .00 .00
Object 9720 - Reserve For Enc
62- - - - -9720- - Reserve For Enc, 2,060,573.64 2,060,573.64
Total for Object 9720 and Ending Balance accounts .00 .00 .00 2,060,573.64 2,060,573.64
Object 9790 - Undesignated/un ‘
62-0000-0- - -9790- - Undesignated/un,Unrestric 540,954.00 661,090.00
62-6266-0- - -9790- - Undesignated/un,Ed Effect 32,266.00-
62-9038-0- - -9790- - Undesignated/un,Grants - 2,000.00
Total for Object 9790 and Ending Balance accounts 540,954.00 630,824.00 .00 .00 .00
Object 9791 - Beginning Balan
62-0000-0- - -9791- - Beginning Balan,Unrestric 708,282.00 784,548.00 102,743.99 887,292.18 784,548.19
62-0000-0-0000-0000-9791-000-0000 Beginning Balan,Unrestric 43,870.00 43,870.00 43,870.00
62-6266- 0- - -9791- - Beginning Balan,Ed Effect 32,266.00 47,932.91 47,932.91
62-6762-0- = -9791- = Beginning Balan,Arts Musi 152,633.18 152,633.18
62-9038-0- - -9791- - Beginning Balan,Grants - 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00
Total for Object 9791 and Starting Balance accounts 740,548.00 830,418.00 303,310.08 1,133,728.27 830,418.19
Total for Org 012 - Live Oak Charter School
Starting Balance + Revenues - Encumbrances - Expenditures = Calculated Ending Balance
Budgeted 830,418.00 3,420,706.00 3,620,300.00 630,824.00
Actual 830,418.19 761,446.62 2,060,573.64 891,870.02 1,360,578.85-
Selection  Grouped by Account Type, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 12, Online/Offline = N, Period = 12, UnPosted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = & ERP for California
N, Restricted Accts? =Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl =) Page 12 of 12
012 - Live Oak Charter School Generated for John Azzizzi (JAZZ1ZZl), Oct 30 2024 9:56AM

36



Fiscal13a

Fund 62 - Charter - Non Profit Corp

Financial Statement

Fiscal Year 2024/25 Through October 2024

Adopted Revised %
Object Description Budget Budget Revenue Balance Recvd
Revenue Detail
LCFF Revenue Sources
8011 Revenue Limit St Aid-curr Year 1,163,636.00 1,163,636.00 198,087.00 965,549.00 17.02
8012 EPA State Aid 94,254.00 94,254.00 26,480.00 67,774.00 28.09
8019 Revenue Limit St Aid-prior Yrs 121,694.00- 121,694.00 NO BDGT
8096 In Lieu Of Property Taxes 1,698,350.00 1,698,350.00 523,709.00 1,174,641.00 30.84
Total LCFF Revenue Sources 2,956,240.00 2,956,240.00 626,582.00 2,329,658.00 21.20
Federal Revenue
8290 All Other Federal Revenues 15,000.00 15,000.00 15,000.00
Total Federal Revenue 15,000.00 15,000.00 .00 15,000.00
Other State Revenues
8550 Mandated Cost Reimbursements 4,742.00 4,742.00 4,742.00
8560 State Lottery Revenue 63,869.00 63,869.00 1,469.46 62,399.54 2.30
8590 All Other State Revenues 88,922.00 88,922.00 41,172.83 47,749.17 46.30
Total Other State Revenues 157,533.00 157,533.00 42,642.29 114,890.71 27.07
Other Local Revenue
8660 Interest 18,000.00 18,000.00 10,236.33 7,763.67 56.87
8677 Interagency Svcs Between Lea's 136,183.00 136,183.00 79,341.50 56,841.50 58.26
8699 All Other Local Revenues 137,750.00 137,750.00 2,644.50 135,105.50 1.92
Total Other Local Revenue 291,933.00 291,933.00 92,222.33 199,710.67 31.59
Total Year To Date Revenues 3,420,706.00 3,420,706.00 761,446.62 2,659,259.38 22.26
Adopted Revised %
Object Description Budget Budget Encumbrance Actual Balance Used
Expenditure Detail
Certificated Salaries
1100 Teachers' Salaries - Regular 1,125,515.00 1,125,515.00 870,864.44 256,136.60 1,486.04- 22.76
1130 Teachers' Sals Extra Assignmnt 31,000.00 31,000.00 15,068.29 13,181.85 2,749.86 42.52
1148 Teacher Substitutes 17,000.00 17,000.00 3,245.00 13,755.00 19.09
1300 Cert Suprvsrs' & Admins' Sal 152,724.00 152,724.00 106,584.39 43,887.69 2,251.92 28.74
Total Certificated Salaries 1,326,239.00 1,326,239.00 992,517.12 316,451.14 17,270.74 23.86
Classified Salaries
2100 Instructional Aides' Salaries 185,738.00 185,738.00 144,476.38 38,805.65 2,455.97 20.89
2130 Instr Aides - Extra Assignmnt 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 100.00
2199 Instr Aides Oth Miscellaneous 8,000.00 8,000.00 3,901.85 4,098.15 48.77
2300 Classifed Director 149,527.00 149,527.00 105,914.93 43,612.03 .04 29.17

Selection  Grouped by Account Type - Sorted by Org, Fund, Object, Filtered by (Org = 12, Starting Period = 1, Ending Account Period = 0, Stmt Option? =,
Zero Amounts? = N, SACS? = N, Restricted? =)

& ERP for California
Page 1 of 6

012 - Live Oak Charter School Generated for John Azzizzi (JAZZIZZl), Oct 30 2024 9:50AM

37



Fund 62 - Charter - Non Profit Corp

Fiscal13a

Financial Statement

Fiscal Year 2024/25 Through October 2024

Adopted Revised %
Object Description Budget Budget Encumbrance Actual Balance Used
Expenditure Detail (continued)
Classified Salaries (continued)
2400 Clerical & Office Salaries 268,241.00 268,241.00 192,491.85 75,749.97 .82- 28.24
2499 Clerical&office Other Misc. 4,000.00 4,000.00 2,256.75 1,743.25 56.42
2900 Other Classified Salaries 21,132.00 21,132.00 27,441.06 8,440.85 14,749.91- 39.94
2999 Other Class Sals Other Misc. 600.00 600.00 242.00 358.00 40.33
Total Classified Salaries 638,238.00 638,238.00 470,324.22 174,009.10 6,095.32- 27.26
Employee Benefits
3101 Benefits - Strs / Certificated 204,952.00 204,952.00 152,201.51 48,962.27 3,788.22 23.89
3102 Benefits - Strs / Classified 7,202.39 2,118.35 9,320.74- NO BDGT
3201 Benefits - Pers / Certificated 68,488.00 68,488.00 52,922.70 15,565.50 .20- 22.73
3202 Benefits - Pers / Classified 172,643.00 172,643.00 110,627.17 41,322.63 20,693.20 23.94
3311 Benefits - Oasdi/ Certificated 15,698.00 15,698.00 11,440.15 3,554.95 702.90 22.65
3312 Benefits - Oasdi/ Classified 39,571.00 39,571.00 26,013.40 9,920.91 3,636.69 25.07
3331 Benefits - Medicare / Cert. 19,230.00 19,230.00 13,740.76 4,466.38 1,022.86 23.23
3332 Benefits - Medicare / Class. 9,254.00 9,254.00 6,631.02 2,481.15 141.83 26.81
3401 H & W Benefits - Certificated 213,750.00 213,750.00 158,716.74 44,154.72 10,878.54 20.66
3402 H & W Benefits - Classified 60,693.00 60,693.00 42,320.38 16,724.76 1,647.86 27.56
3501 Benefits - Sui / Certificated 1,163.00 1,163.00 473.45 153.96 535.59 13.24
3502 Benefits - Sui / Classified 319.00 319.00 228.82 85.59 4.59 26.83
3601 Benefits - Wcomp/ Certificated 13,793.00 13,793.00 10,322.06 3,291.05 179.89 23.86
3602 Benefits - Wcomp/ Classified 6,638.00 6,638.00 4,891.75 1,809.80 63.55- 27.26
Total Employee Benefits 826,192.00 826,192.00 597,732.30 194,612.02 33,847.68 23.56
Books and Supplies
4110 Textbooks 3,200.00 3,200.00 1,415.54 1,784.46 44.24
4210 Books Other Than Textbooks 1,200.00 1,200.00 81.74 1,118.26 6.81
4300 Materials & Supplies 2,500.00 2,500.00 356.81 2,143.19 14.27
4310 Instructional Mat'ls&supplies 25,785.00 25,785.00 16,387.74 9,397.26 63.56
4340 Computer Sftware & Related Exp 425.00 425.00 293.50 131.50 69.06
4350 Office Supplies 5,000.00 5,000.00 1,978.94 3,021.06 39.58
4370 Custodial Supplies 7,000.00 7,000.00 2,508.35 4,491.65 35.83
4390 Other Supplies 28,853.00 28,853.00 8,905.64 19,947.36 30.87
4400 Inventory Supplies 4,500.00 4,500.00 9,357.35 4,857.35- 207.94
4710 Food Purchases For Food Servc 2,000.00 2,000.00 190.86 1,809.14 9.54
Total Books and Supplies 80,463.00 80,463.00 .00 41,476.47 38,986.53 51.55
Services and Other Operating Expenditures
5200 Travel & Conferences 23,850.00 23,850.00 12,353.44 11,496.56 51.80

Selection  Grouped by Account Type - Sorted by Org, Fund, Object, Filtered by (Org = 12, Starting Period = 1, Ending Account Period = 0, Stmt Option? =,

Zero Amounts? = N, SACS? = N, Restricted? =)

& ERP for California
Page 2 of 6

012 - Live Oak Charter School

Generated for John Azzizzi (JAZZ1ZZl), Oct 30 2024 9:50AM

38



Fiscal13a

Fund 62 - Charter - Non Profit Corp

Financial Statement

Fiscal Year 2024/25 Through October 2024

Adopted Revised %
Object Description Budget Budget Encumbrance Actual Balance Used
Expenditure Detail (continued)
Services and Other Operating Expenditures (continued)
5300 Dues & Memberships 3,500.00 3,500.00 2,260.00 1,240.00 64.57
5450 Other Insurance 31,634.00 31,634.00 29,414.00 2,220.00 92.98
5520 Electricity 49,450.00 49,450.00 4,246.48 45,203.52 8.59
5530 Water 23,000.00 23,000.00 23,000.00
5550 Laundry And Cleaning 35,460.00 35,460.00 3,600.00 31,860.00 10.15
5560 Waste Disposal 9,500.00 9,500.00 3,287.76 6,212.24 34.61
5570 Pest Control 2,750.00 2,750.00 990.00 1,760.00 36.00
5590 Other Housekeeping Services 12,000.00 12,000.00 5,111.50 6,888.50 42.60
5600 Rentals And Leases 140,990.00 140,990.00 58,041.25 82,948.75 4117
5630 Repairs 20,000.00 20,000.00 613.69 19,386.31 3.07
5800 Other Svcs & Oper Expenditures 119,872.00 119,872.00 22,285.39 97,586.61 18.59
5817 Scoe Data Processing Charges 11,681.00 11,681.00 11,681.00
5821 Audit Costs 22,000.00 22,000.00 6,475.35 15,524.65 29.43
5823 Legal Costs 5,000.00 5,000.00 352.50 4,647.50 7.05
5825 Advertisement (legal, Etc.) 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00
5830 Professional/consultant Srvcs 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
5860 Other Employment Costs 500.00 500.00 500.00
5862 Fingerprinting Costs 2,000.00 2,000.00 741.00 1,259.00 37.05
5911 Telephone 3,750.00 3,750.00 1,385.32 2,364.68 36.94
5940 Internet 20,070.00 20,070.00 12,953.60 7,116.40 64.54
5950 Postage 1,100.00 1,100.00 849.61 250.39 77.24
Total Services and Other Operating Expenditures 540,607.00 540,607.00 .00 164,960.89 375,646.11 30.51
6600 - 6999
6900 Depreciation Expense 1,081.00 1,081.00 360.40 720.60 33.34
Total 6600 - 6999 1,081.00 1,081.00 .00 360.40 720.60 33.34
Tuition
7141 Oth Tuitn, Excess Csts Sch Dis 207,480.00 207,480.00 207,480.00
Total Tuition 207,480.00 207,480.00 .00 .00 207,480.00
Total Year To Date Expenditures 3,620,300.00 3,620,300.00 2,060,573.64 891,870.02 667,856.34 24.64

Selection  Grouped by Account Type - Sorted by Org, Fund, Object, Filtered by (Org = 12, Starting Period = 1, Ending Account Period = 0, Stmt Option? =,
Zero Amounts? = N, SACS? = N, Restricted? =)

& ERF for California
Page 3 of 6

012 - Live Oak Charter School

Generated for John Azzizzi (JAZZ1ZZl), Oct 30 2024 9:50AM

39



Fiscal13a

Fund 62 - Charter - Non Profit Corp

Financial Statement

Fiscal Year 2024/25 Through October 2024

Beginning Year to Date Ending
Object Description Balance Activity Balance
Fund Reconciliation
Assets
9110 Cash In County Treasury 1,072,849.13 240,633.66- 832,215.47
9120 Cash In Bank(s) 1,025.00 1,025.00
9130 Revolving Cash Account 6,000.00 6,000.00
9210 Accts Receivable (prior Year) 88,002.66 88,002.66-
9211 Accts Receivable - Cur Activty 1,643.44 1,643.44-
9218 Alr Charter/district 123,617.00 123,617.00-
9290 A/r Due From Other Govt(pr Yr) 15,449.66 15,449.66-
9299 Alr Due Fm Govt Setup (cur Yr) 155,040.00 155,040.00-
9330 Prepaid Expenditures(expenses) 21,499.33 21,499.33-
9430 Buildings 52,114.46 52,114.46
9435 Accumulated Depreciation-bldgs 49,231.24- 360.40- 49,591.64-
9460 Lease Asset 400,777.92 400,777.92
9465 Amortization-Lease Asset 70,671.36- 42,808.64- 113,480.00-
Total Assets 1,818,116.00 689,054.79- 1,129,061.21
Liabilities
9510 Accts Payable (prior Year) 351,435.35 351,435.35-
9511 Accts Payable - Cur Activity 177,145.84 16,993.83- 160,152.01
9515 Accts Payable - Outdate Warrnt 79.30 79.30
9518 Alp Charter/district 121,694.00 121,694.00-
9555 Unemployment Ins Liability 320.06 27.30- 292.76
9556 Workers Comp Ins Liability 906.00 3,826.15- 2,920.15-
9570 Blue Cross Clearing 1,352.00- 1,352.00-
9571 Kaiser Insurance Clearing 19,075.95- 19,075.95-
9573 Dental Insurance Clearing 1,402.50- 1,402.50-
9575 Life Insurance Clearing 20.61 20.61
9577 Other H&w Insurance Clearing 115.58- 115.58-
9590 Alp Due To Other Govts (pr Yr) 6,090.00 6,090.00
9667 Lease Liability 330,106.56 42,808.64- 287,297.92
Total Liabilities 987,697.81 558,631.39- 429,066.42
Calculated Fund Balance 830,418.19 130,423.40- 699,994.79
Beginning Fund Balance
9791 Beginning Balance 830,418.19 830,418.19
Beginning Fund Balance Proof .00 130,423.40- 130,423.40-

Change in Fund Balance - Excess Revenues ( Expenditures )

(130,423.40)

Selection  Grouped by Account Type - Sorted by Org, Fund, Object, Filtered by (Org = 12, Starting Period = 1, Ending Account Period = 0, Stmt Option? =,

Zero Amounts? = N, SACS? = N, Restricted? =)

& ERP for California
Page 4 of 6

012 - Live Oak Charter School

Generated for John Azzizzi (JAZZ1ZZl), Oct 30 2024 9:50AM

40



Fiscal13a Financial Statement

Fiscal Year 2024/25 Through October 2024

Fund 62 - Charter - Non Profit Corp

Memo Only - Ending Fund Balance Accounts

Adopted Revised
Reserves
9720 Reserve For Encumbrances 2,060,573.64 2,060,573.64
Other Designations
9790 Undesignated/unappropriated 540,954.00 630,824.00
Selection  Grouped by Account Type - Sorted by Org, Fund, Object, Filtered by (Org = 12, Starting Period = 1, Ending Account Period = 0, Stmt Option? =, & ERP for California
Zero Amounts? = N, SACS? = N, Restricted? =) Page 5 of 6
012 - Live Oak Charter School Generated for John Azzizzi (JAZZIZZl), Oct 30 2024 9:50AM

41



Fiscal13a Financial Statement

Fund 62 - Charter - Non Profit Corp Fiscal Year 2024/25 Through October 2024
Adopted Revised Budget % of
Description Budget Budget Encumbrance Actual Balance Budget
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
A. Revenues 3,420,706.00 3,420,706.00 761,446.62 2,659,259.38 22.26
B. Expenditures 3,620,300.00 3,620,300.00 2,060,573.64 891,870.02 667,856.34 24.64
C. Subtotal (Revenue LESS Expense) 199,594.00- 199,594.00- 130,423.40- 1,991,403.04
D. Other Financing Sources and Uses
Sources
LESS Uses
E. Net Change in Fund Balance 199,594.00- 199,594.00- 130,423.40- 1,991,403.04

F. Fund Balance:
Beginning Balance (9791) 740,548.00 830,418.00 830,418.19
Audit Adjustments  (9793)
Other Restatements (9795)

Adjusted Beginning Balance 740,548.00 830,418.00 830,418.19

G. Calculated Ending Balance 540,954.00 630,824.00 699,994.79
*Components of Ending Fund Balance
Legally Restricted (9740)
Other Designations (9780)

Undesig/Unapprop (9790) 540,954.00 630,824.00
Other 2,060,573.64
Selection  Grouped by Account Type - Sorted by Org, Fund, Object, Filtered by (Org = 12, Starting Period = 1, Ending Account Period = 0, Stmt Option? =, & ERP for California
Zero Amounts? = N, SACS? = N, Restricted? =) Page 6 of 6
012 - Live Oak Charter School Generated for John Azzizzi (JAZZIZZ1), Oct 30 2024 9:50AM

42



Live Oak Charter School (LOCS) Media & Technology Guidelines
Supporting Healthy Relationships with Technology in a Digital Age

Today’s children are growing up in an era of unprecedented access to technology and media.
From an early age, they encounter digital devices, online platforms, and a constant flow of
information that shapes their understanding of the world. While technology offers valuable tools
for learning and connection, it also brings challenges that require mindful guidance. At LOCS,
our mission is to nurture the whole child—mind, body, and spirit—in alignment with Waldorf
principles. We strive to create an environment where children can experience wonder, creativity,
and authentic connection, free from the distractions and developmental impacts often linked to
early and excessive media and technology exposure. We encourage our community to embrace
a thoughtful approach to technology, cultivating habits that support children’s holistic growth,
while allowing time and space for deep, imaginative play and meaningful in-person interactions.
Through these guidelines, we aim to empower families in navigating this new digital landscape
thoughtfully, ensuring that technology enhances—rather than overshadows—our children’s
development and well-being.

Our Approach to Media and Technology

Research highlights the developmental impacts of habitual electronic media use, especially in
early childhood.' Frequent screen exposure has been linked to diminished attention span,
creativity, and social-emotional skills, as well as disrupted physical health.® LOCS'’s guidelines,
inspired by our values, are intended to support families in balancing the benefits of technology
with the developmental needs of children. We acknowledge that all media and technology are
not created equal and that thoughtful and skillful exposure can have much more positive
outcomes than unintentional use.*

Community Acknowledgement

At LOCS our commitment to our students and community result in having strong
recommendations and values around how engage with technology. However we recognize that
every family and student is on their own unique journey with media and technology use, shaped
by personal values, experiences, and needs. At LOCS, our aim is to meet each family where
they are, providing guidance and support to help everyone engage with technology thoughtfully
and intentionally, in a way that aligns with our shared community values.

Digital Balance, Hygiene, and Citizenship

As children grow and develop, they gradually acquire the maturity needed to engage with
technology in a thoughtful and responsible way. At LOCS, we support this journey by fostering
Digital Balance, Hygiene, and Citizenship skills across all stages of development. These
skills help students navigate technology mindfully, protect their well-being, and interact

1

https://jamanetwork.com/journals/jamapediatrics/article-abstract/2813443
2 https://pubmed.ncbi.nim.nih.gov/22041529/

3 https://pmc.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/articles/PMC9923845/
“https://www.aacap.org/AACAP/Families_and_Youth/Facts_for_Families/FFF-Guide/Video-Games-Youth-
091.aspx?WebsiteKey=a2785385-0ccf-4047-b76a-64b4094ae07f

43


https://jamanetwork.com/journals/jamapediatrics/article-abstract/2813443

respectfully online, ensuring they are equipped to handle the digital world in a healthy, balanced

manner.

1. Digital Balance: Teaching students to use technology purposefully helps them
understand when it enhances their lives and when it may detract from real-world
experiences.

o

Prioritizing In-Person Connections: Early adolescence is a time for
strengthening peer relationships. We emphasize the importance of in-person
connections to support emotional health, empathy, and active listening.

Choosing Quality Over Quantity: At this stage, students begin to discern which
media align with their values. We encourage working with your child to select
age-appropriate, meaningful content, and establishing “tech-free” spaces and
times to reinforce a balanced approach.

Supervised Media Consumption: To ensure a safe and positive experience,
any media consumption at this stage should be done with an adult present,
allowing parents to guide content choices and engage in discussions about what
children are watching or playing.

Disabling Video Auto-Play: Auto-play features should be disabled on all
devices used by children to encourage intentional viewing choices. By removing
auto-play, children have greater control over what they watch, reducing passive
consumption and limiting exposure to potentially unsuitable content.

Limiting Video Game Use: If video games are part of media use, they should be
age-appropriate, non-violent, and time-restricted, with adults present to supervise
and discuss content. Limiting game use helps students maintain a balanced
sense of play and stay connected to the physical world.

2. Digital Hygiene: Developing habits that support safe, responsible technology use
ensures students can engage with media without compromising their physical and
mental health.

o

Practicing Screen Time Moderation: Adolescents are encouraged to take
breaks and set limits, helping prevent excessive screen use, which can disrupt
sleep and increase stress.

Protecting Privacy and Recognizing Content Impact: Students learn the
importance of safeguarding personal information and critically assessing online
content. These habits help them make informed choices and avoid potentially
harmful situations.

Device Security and Filters: To further support safe digital use, all devices
accessible to children should be equipped with child filters and security settings
to limit internet access to age-appropriate content. This added layer of security
helps prevent exposure to unsuitable material and fosters a safer online
experience.

44



3. Digital Citizenship: In middle school, students are introduced to digital citizenship,
learning to approach online interactions with respect, kindness, and responsibility.

o Respectful Communication: Adolescents are guided to use empathy and
respect in online interactions, just as they would in person, promoting healthy
relationships and positive digital interactions.

o Building a Positive Digital Footprint: Understanding that online actions leave a
lasting “digital footprint” helps students become thoughtful about what they share
and say, fostering responsible digital behavior.

A Lifelong Foundation

By introducing Digital Balance, Hygiene, and Citizenship at this pivotal developmental stage, we
empower students to cultivate a healthy relationship with technology as they grow. These
foundational skills support a safer, more connected world and enable students to use
technology in ways that benefit their learning, relationships, and well-being.

A Collective Commitment and the Importance of Open Community Dialogue

In our community, guiding children toward balanced media habits is a shared endeavor. Limiting
media exposure often feels countercultural, yet in a community guided by Waldorf values, a
unified approach helps make this commitment both meaningful and attainable.

The Power of Collective Action

e Modeling Healthy Boundaries: Children learn best through observation. As parents,
minimizing personal media consumption and phone use in front of our children reinforces
the value of presence, focus, and connection. When we consciously choose screen-free
activities, particularly during family time or shared meals, we demonstrate that the most
meaningful interactions often happen in the absence of screens.

e Creating a Support Network for Families: Shared goals among families reduce
feelings of isolation and reinforce everyone’s efforts.

e Reducing Peer Pressure Among Children: Community-wide media guidelines ease
social pressure for children, fostering meaningful, screen-free activities.

The Value of Open Dialogue

As technology evolves, open conversations help our community adapt and uphold these shared
values. Regular discussions allow us to:

e Share Experiences and Learn Together: Honest conversations create a supportive
culture where families can exchange practical ideas and encouragement, and support
each other in implementation.

e Adapt Guidelines Collaboratively: As children grow, ongoing dialogue enables us to
refine our guidelines thoughtfully, ensuring they remain relevant and supportive of all
ages.



A Unified Path Forward

With intention, openness, and trust, we are building a foundation for our children to grow in
harmony with their natural development. Each family’s commitment contributes to a community
that prioritizes the whole child, creating a path forward that fosters curiosity, well-being, and
imagination.

By joining in this commitment, we empower our children to form healthy relationships with
technology, guiding them on a journey that will benefit them well beyond their time at LOCS.

Recommended Media and Technology Use by Type and Age Group

The guidelines for media use at each age stage are designed to honor the natural progression
of childhood development as understood in Waldorf education. These stages reflect children’s
evolving needs, interests, and capacities, and our recommendations for media use align with
these insights.

At LOCS, we recommend that families consider each type of media differently, as they impact
children’s development in various ways. Not all technology is created equal, and understanding
these differences allows parents and caregivers to shape thoughtful family policies and values
around each type of technology and media use. Reflecting on family values around each media
type can help guide balanced, intentional usage and create a cohesive approach that supports
holistic child development. We strongly recommend that your family annually reviews your
values around each type and the policies you may have for each. Through these age-specific
guidelines, we aim to honor children’s natural stages of growth while fostering balanced
relationships with media that support their physical, emotional, and cognitive development.

Types of media and considerations for each include:

1. Passive Media (e.g., Television, Streaming Services like Hulu or Netflix)
Family policies might consider the type of content viewed, frequency, and whether it
aligns with values. Passive media can introduce concepts and stimulate interest, but it's
essential to monitor for age-appropriateness. Always use review websites like common
sense media to help make content decisions.®

2. Interactive Content (e.g., YouTube)
Interactive platforms often use Al-driven algorithms, which can suggest inappropriate or
extreme content. Establishing family guidelines around safe viewing and setting up
supervised sessions can help protect children and prevent unintended exposure.®

3. Short-Form Video Platforms (e.g., TikTok)
These platforms can rapidly capture attention and engage children through short,
high-stimulation content.

4. Interactive Devices (e.g., Tablets, Phones)
Touch-screen devices have a pronounced effect on reward centers in the brain,

5 https://www.commonsensemedia.org/
Shttps://www.psychologytoday.com/us/blog/mental-wealth/201408/dumb-dumber-interactive-screentime-is
-worse-than-tv

46



increasing the likelihood of dependence and overstimulation. Families may want to set
clear rules on where, when and how these devices are used, focusing on intentional,
limited engagement.

Video Games

Games have unique impacts, especially on reward and behavioral centers in the brain.
Families should discuss values around the types of games allowed, time limitations, and
any rules to ensure a balanced approach to play.

Internet and Web Access

Access to the internet introduces a wide range of content, much of which may be
inappropriate or overwhelming for children. Families should consider boundaries for web
access, safety filters, and guiding children toward safe, age-appropriate websites that
align with family values.

Social Media (e.g., Instagram, Facebook) Social media platforms are designed to
facilitate interaction but can often lead to issues with self-esteem, social comparison, and
privacy concerns, especially for young users.

Early Childhood (Birth to 7 Years):

In this foundational stage, young children learn primarily through movement, sensory
experiences, and imaginative play. Waldorf philosophy emphasizes imitation and open-hearted
exploration. We recommend minimal to no screen exposure during this age, as screen-free time
supports healthy physical and social-emotional development. Instead, we encourage
family-centered activities and hands-on engagement with the natural world.

Passive Media: If families decide to allow limited exposure, choose short,
age-appropriate content that aligns with family values. Avoid fast-paced, overstimulating
shows, which can disrupt attention and emotional regulation. Use review sites like
Common Sense Media to select content.

Interactive Content: Avoid platforms like YouTube, as algorithm-driven content can lead
to inappropriate suggestions. If used, strictly limit exposure and always supervise
content carefully. Autoplay and recommendations should remain turned off.
Short-Form Video: Not recommended for this age due to high stimulation and rapid
visual changes.

Interactive Devices: Avoid or strictly limit the use of tablets and phones. No
smartphones or personal devices.

Video Games: Not recommended; prioritize physical and imaginative play.

Internet and Web Access: Not recommended at this age. Introduce internet use only for
co-viewed, supervised educational purposes if necessary.

Social Media: Not appropriate for this age group. Focus on real-world, face-to-face
interactions and imaginative play.

Middle Childhood (Ages 7 to 10):

47



As children transition to middle childhood, they deepen their imaginative capacities and develop
a stronger sense of social awareness. During this time, children benefit from creative,
experiential learning within a structured environment.

e Passive Media: Encourage family-oriented viewing of slow-paced, meaningful content
on weekends. Reinforce content that promotes values like empathy and creativity.

¢ Interactive Content: Avoid platforms like YouTube; if used, strictly limit exposure and
supervise content carefully. Autoplay and recommendations should remain turned off.

¢ Short-Form Video: Strongly discourage use due to overstimulation and limited benefits
for attention span development.

¢ Interactive Devices: Avoid or strictly limit the use of tablets and phones, restricting
devices primarily to educational or family-centered use. No smartphones or personal
devices.

e Video Games: Not recommended, if choose to use strongly limit to age-appropriate,
cooperatively focused, non-violent games with time restrictions. Encourage
conversations about gaming's impact and prioritize offline activities.

¢ Internet and Web Access: Supervised, restricted use focusing on trusted educational
sites, with child-safe filters and usage only in public family rooms.

e Social Media: Not recommended. Reinforce in-person communication and self-esteem
development through direct social interactions.

Later Childhood (Ages 10 to 12):

In later childhood, children are increasingly drawn to social connections and group activities,
balancing curiosity and independence with the need for structure.

o Passive Media: Promote family-friendly content and documentaries, using media as a
discussion point to explore values and the world around them.

¢ Interactive Content: Can allow limited, supervised use of platforms like YouTube with
guidance on critical thinking and algorithm influence. Strongly recommend turning off
Autoplay and limiting recommended video features.

e Short-Form Video: Strongly discourage due to overstimulation. If allowed, keep strict
limits and monitor content closely.

¢ Interactive Devices: No smartphones or personal devices. Introduce tablets or
computers as tools for educational use only, with structured limits on duration and
frequency. Discuss the importance of tech-free times and screen dependency, and use
parental controls to support safe use. Examples of educational uses are procreate and
libby.”

o Video Games: Not recommended, if choose to use strongly limit to age-appropriate,
cooperatively focused, non-violent games with time restrictions. Encourage
conversations about gaming's impact and prioritize offline activities.

e Internet and Web Access: Supervised use with an emphasis on educational or
research purposes, with reinforced guidance on safe browsing, privacy awareness, and
appropriate usage.

7 hitps://new.sonomalibrary.org/elibrary/a-z/libby and https://procreate.com/

48


https://new.sonomalibrary.org/elibrary/a-z/libby
https://procreate.com/

e Social Media: Not recommended. Delay introduction to social media, encouraging
real-world socialization and self-esteem building.

Early Adolescence (Ages 12 to 14):

In early adolescence, children’s curiosity about the world grows. Waldorf philosophy considers
this a time for fostering discernment and self-awareness, and parental guidance in technology
remains essential.

e Passive Media: Encourage family-oriented viewing of meaningful, age-appropriate
content. Limit usage to weekends or special occasions.

¢ Interactive Content: Limited access to platforms like YouTube with ongoing discussions
around critical thinking, advertising influence, and safe usage. Autoplay and
recommendations should remain turned off.

e Short-Form Video: Discourage use due to overstimulation. If allowed, strictly limit and
monitor content closely.

e Interactive Devices: No smartphones until age 14. For communication, consider a basic
phone or smartwatch with limited phone and text capabilities. Tablets and computers
may be introduced for educational use, with structured limits and continued parental
guidance.

e Video Games: Strongly limited to age-appropriate, non-violent games, and reinforce
balanced use. Engage in conversations about the effects of gaming and prioritize
physical activities.

Encourage conversations about gaming's impact and prioritize offline activities. Opt for
games that emphasize teamwork, creativity, or problem-solving. Some family-friendly,
cooperative options for this age group include:

o Minecraft (Creative mode): Encourages building and creativity in a safe,
non-violent setting.
o Animal Crossing: Offers a gentle, social experience where kids can visit each
other’s islands and explore.
o Rocket League (with limits on competitive pressure): Focuses on teamwork and
strategy in a playful environment.
¢ Internet and Web Access: Supervised use focused on educational and research
activities. Continue reinforcing privacy, safe browsing, and responsible digital behavior.
e Social Media: No social media accounts until age 16. This delay supports identity
formation, self-esteem, and social skills development before navigating online peer
influence.

49



